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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ: Good morning.  My

          3  name is Reverend Ruben Diaz.  I am the

          4  representative of the 18th Councilmanic District in

          5  Bronx County.  I am the Chairman of the Aging

          6  Committee, and today we will be dealing with three

          7  resolutions that have to deal with the way in which

          8  the nursing homes and institutions that deals with

          9  senior citizens hires their employees.

         10                 The first Resolution that we will be

         11  dealing with will be Resolution No. 223, introduced

         12  by Council Member Helen Foster, and co-sponsored by

         13  the Honorable Council Member, Speaker Miller,

         14  Council Member Addabbo.  By Council Members Comrie,

         15  Diaz, Davis, Fidler, Jackson, Martinez, Monserrate,

         16  Nelson, Perkins, Rivera, Sanders, Serrano, Stewart,

         17  and Clarke.

         18                 This Resolution calls upon the State

         19  Legislature to enact legislation to regulate

         20  staffing and training standards in nursing home in

         21  New York State.

         22                 The second Resolution will be

         23  Resolution No. 360, introduced by Council Member

         24  Nelson, and co-sponsored by the Honorable Speaker

         25  Miller, Council Members, Davis, DeBlasio, Diaz,
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          2  Fidler, Gerson, Katz, McMahon, Monserrate, Recchia,

          3  Reyna, Sanders, Seabrook and Stewart.

          4                 This Resolution 360 is a resolution

          5  calling on the New York State Legislature to adopt

          6  Assembly Bill A.7906 and its companion, State Senate

          7  Bill S. 5215, which would amend the public health

          8  law and the social services law, in relations to

          9  instituting a requirement for a criminal history

         10  report for nursing home, home care services agency

         11  and hospice employees.

         12                 The third resolution is Resolution

         13  No. 361, introduced by Council Member Nelson, and

         14  co- sponsored by Speaker Miller, Council Members

         15  Davis, DeBlasio, Diaz, Fidler, Gerson, Katz,

         16  McMahon, Martinez, Monserrate, Recchia, Reyna,

         17  Sanders, Seabrook, and Stewart.

         18                 Resolution No. 361 is a resolution

         19  calling upon the New York State Legislature to adopt

         20  Assembly Bill A.4601, which will amend the Public

         21  Health Law and the Executive Law in relation to

         22  require the nursing home and home care agencies to

         23  submit fingerprints of current and perspective

         24  employees for the purpose of a search of criminal

         25  history record of the Division of Criminal Justice
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          2  Services and establishing a registry of home care

          3  services' personnel.

          4                 Those three resolutions we will be

          5  dealing them today, and we will be voting on the

          6  three of them today.  And based on a report by the

          7  Daily News yesterday, which I have with me, will

          8  call for nursing home, number one, in felons.  This

          9  is a report from this newspaper, that creates more

         10  anxiety than we already have.  Today we will,

         11  finally, be dealing with this.  And the New York

         12  City Council will be taking a position on this

         13  issue.

         14                 We will be dealing with not only the

         15  workers and the center, we will also be dealing,

         16  number one, worker by ground and training.  And

         17  also, we will be dealing, this Committee has

         18  instructed, as a Chairman, has instructed my staff

         19  to create of bill of right lease for the clients to

         20  be posted in every center, in every nursing home, in

         21  every hospital, and that bill of rights is already

         22  in progress, and we will be promoting and announcing

         23  when that will be completed.

         24                 Today, I have members of the

         25  Committee with me, I have the Honorable Dennis
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          2  Gallagher, we have the Honorable Helen Foster, who

          3  is the creator of Resolution No. 223.  I have Mr.

          4  Michael Nelson, who is the creator of Resolution 360

          5  and 361.  And we have the Honorable Simcha Felder,

          6  the person that sits next to me in the Stated

          7  meetings.

          8                 So, that being said, I would like to

          9  open, before I take any witness, I would like to ask

         10  my fellow Council members to say a few words, if

         11  they want to?  Starting to my left, Council Member

         12  Helen Foster from the Bronx.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER:  Good morning,

         14  thank you, Reverend Diaz.  I think that we have to

         15  have the same commitment to seniors that we do to

         16  children in terms of the care, with the resolution I

         17  introduced, dealing with staffing levels, that we

         18  have to be mindful that these are the people that

         19  paved the way for us. And that once we they get old,

         20  we cannot feel that we have the need to discard

         21  them.  And this is a personal issue, as I deal with

         22  an uncle of mine who is in California who has to be

         23  placed in a nursing home.  And I want to make sure

         24  that the staffing level is appropriate to take care

         25  of him.
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          2                 And I applaud Councilman Nelson in

          3  terms of background checks, because we can do not

          4  enough when it comes to protecting our seniors.  And

          5  I applaud you, Chairman, for having the courage to

          6  put this on, because sometimes in government we like

          7  to sweep difficult under the rug, but we need to

          8  remember that our seniors pave the way for us to be

          9  here.  But more importantly they vote in a very

         10  powerful number.  So thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Thank you, Council

         12  Member Foster. It is our responsibility, it is our

         13  duty, and it is our purpose to protect and defend

         14  senior citizens all the time and to be sure that

         15  they are secure and they are well served.  Sometimes

         16  that does not go along with people, but we have to

         17  do the best to provide the best services.  And this

         18  Committee and its member is committed to do that, it

         19  is committed to do that.  To bring the best and the

         20  pressure, whatever it is, to be sure that senior

         21  citizens have been taken care of throughout the City

         22  of New York, not only the City, throughout the State

         23  of New York.

         24                 Council Member Michael Nelson.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Thank you
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          2  very much, Mr. Chair.  I applaud you for bringing

          3  this to the fore, and for my colleague, Helen

          4  Foster, too, for her very, very good resolution.

          5                 I would just like to almost repeat

          6  what she said, so I do not have to about the

          7  priority that we have for our senior population.

          8  And certainly they are important as any segment of

          9  the population, and given the fact that when they

         10  are in a nursing home, they really cannot fend for

         11  themselves, it is the duty of any society to ensure

         12  that they are as safe as possible.

         13                 And if you have to imagine your

         14  parent being in one of these institutions, and think

         15  how you would feel about it, or possibly yourself.

         16  I always thought I could see the scenario where I

         17  might be in a senior home some day, and laying there

         18  and needing help and pain, or just needing some

         19  medication.  And perhaps, the so- called service

         20  provider might be in the corner somewhere shooting

         21  up or just snoozing or really not caring, because it

         22  is totally just a job and the person may have a

         23  particularly bad background.  And then I would say

         24  to myself why didn't I do something about this when

         25  I could have.
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          2                 So I certainly did not want to have

          3  to face that personally, and I feel for those who

          4  are in that position right now.  And again, I

          5  commend the very caring Chair of this Committee.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER DIAZ:  Thank you.  I

          7  do not want to be, I do not want to sound rude, but

          8  I am going to ask my fellow Council members to make

          9  it brief so we can hear from all the testimonies.

         10                 I also want to remind the members of

         11  the Committee that we are voting today.  That means

         12  we you have to be here for the vote, because you

         13  cannot leave, we have to vote today in the three

         14  resolutions.  So let me hear today from Council

         15  Member Simcha Felder.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Thank you,

         17  Mr. Chair.  I just want to ask to be added as a

         18  prime sponsor to 360 and 361, if that is possible?

         19  And in addition, just to make it brief to say a

         20  discussion about home care services personnel,

         21  particularly, where in the homes, at least, there

         22  are some semblance of supervision regulation when

         23  people are sent out to homes of the elderly, and you

         24  have somebody who may have a criminal record

         25  entering into somebody's house the danger of the
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          2  care or the lack of thereof, and what that person

          3  may be doing in somebody's house, becomes even much,

          4  much more important.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Thank you.

          7  Council Member Dennis Gallagher.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER:  Thank you,

          9  Mr. Chairman. And I want to especially thank Council

         10  Members Foster and Nelson for bringing these bills

         11  forward.  As many of you know during my tenure on

         12  this Council, I have had a tendency to vote no quite

         13  often, and it is actually very pleasing to come to

         14  this Committee and support these three pieces of

         15  legislation, because I think they are so important.

         16  And I would like to join Council Member Felder in

         17  also having my name listed as a sponsor of these

         18  three.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  We have been

         20  joined by Council Member Kendall Stewart and Erik

         21  Dilan from Brooklyn.  And I am going to have Erik

         22  Dilan to say just - -

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN:  (Not speaking

         24  into the mic.)

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Oh, I love you.

                                                            11

          1  COMMITTEE ON AGING

          2  Council Member Stewart.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Thank you,

          4  Mr. Chair.  I would just like to say thank you for

          5  having this hearing this morning and having the vote

          6  today because we need to have passed these

          7  resolutions already.  And to make sure that our

          8  workers are taking care of our seniors in a proper

          9  way.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Thank you.  We are

         12  ready to start taking testimonies on these three

         13  resolutions.  And we are going to deal with the

         14  three of them at the same time.

         15                 We have invited, by the way, before I

         16  call anybody, let me read the names of the people

         17  that we have invited.  We also have invited Mr. Bill

         18  Pascocello (phonetic), he is the Nightingale Nursing

         19  Home Administrator, he refuses to attend this

         20  hearing.  We have invited Dr. Benjamin Chu,

         21  President of Health and Hospital Corporation, he

         22  declined to attend.  We have invited Dr. Antonia

         23  Novello, Commissioner of the New York State

         24  Department of Health, she declined to attend.  We

         25  have invited Commissioner Mendez Santiago from the
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          2  New York City Department of Aging, he will not be

          3  attending.  We have invited Cynthia Rudder, Director

          4  of the Nursing Home Community Coalition of New York

          5  State, she is here.  Geoff Lieberman, Executive

          6  Director of the Coalition of the Institutionalized

          7  Aged and Disabled, they are here?  They are here.

          8  Chris Parque, Program Director of Friends and

          9  Relatives of Institutionalized Aged, they are here.

         10  Jacqueline Case, Ombudsman Program Coordinator for

         11  the New York Foundation for Senior Citizens, she is

         12  not here yet, Long Term Care Ombudsman Program, and

         13  Janet Haebler, Associate Director of the Practice

         14  and Governmental Affairs Division of the New York

         15  State Nurses Association.  And from the 1199 SEIU,

         16  Jay Sackman, Executive Vice President, he is here.

         17                 Okay, now ladies and gentlemen, we

         18  are going to start right away calling Thomas Staffa,

         19  he is the Assistant Attorney General from the Office

         20  of Attorney General Eliot Spitzer.

         21                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY ATTORNEY GENERAL

         22  STAFFA:  Good morning.  I am Thomas Staffa.  I am

         23  the Assistant Deputy Attorney General for Eliot

         24  Spitzer, the Attorney General of the State of New

         25  York.  I work for Eliot Spitzer's Medicaid Fraud
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          2  Control Unit.

          3                 I am pleased to appear before you

          4  today to talk about the care and safety of residents

          5  in nursing homes, a subject that is a source of deep

          6  and abiding concern to my Office and Attorney

          7  General Spitzer, and I know equally of great concern

          8  to your Committee.

          9                 Under Attorney General Spitzer, my

         10  Office is committed to improving the quality of

         11  health care for the elderly by prosecuting those

         12  individuals who abuse and neglect any of the more

         13  than 120,000 patients in New York's 670 nursing

         14  homes around the state.

         15                 You should know that the Medicaid

         16  Fraud Control Unit in New York State is the largest

         17  prosecutors office in the country devoted solely to

         18  prosecuting health care fraud and patient abuse. We

         19  are the primary prosecuting agency in this State for

         20  investigating and prosecuting abuse and neglect in

         21  nursing homes.

         22                 It is difficult to conceive of a more

         23  vulnerable, less threatening group of people than

         24  those who reside in nursing homes.  Yet, too often,

         25  our frailest, poorest, and most dependent citizens
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          2  are the targets of cruel and, at times, sadistic

          3  violence and mistreatment by those entrusted with

          4  their care and well- being.

          5                 Last year, for example, a 95- year-

          6  old man with an abdominal hernia was being prepared

          7  for bed when a nurse's aide grabbed the skin over

          8  the injury, stretching it 12 inches from the body,

          9  and let in snap back, causing the patient to cry out

         10  in horrific pain.

         11                 In another case, an aide allegedly

         12  left an 82- year old woman dangling three feet off

         13  the ground in a tub chair without a safety belt.

         14  Unattended, the woman fell and fractured both legs.

         15  She died the next day.

         16                 And in a third case, an aide withheld

         17  treatment from a terminally ill 82- year- old woman

         18  with gangrenous wounds on four consecutive days by

         19  falsely writing in the patient's medical chart that,

         20  in fact, she had provided treatment.

         21                 These cases are a small snapshot of

         22  the reported assaults, neglect and mistreatment

         23  confronted by my Office over the course of a year.

         24  In fact, over the course of a year, we have opened

         25  up close to 300 investigations and prosecute nearly
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          2  30 individuals every year on an average for patient

          3  abuse and neglect.            One of the most

          4  appalling stories is that of Arthur Wallace, a

          5  certified nurse's aide formerly employed in the

          6  Oneida City Hospital Extended Care Facility.  In

          7  July 2000, Wallace was sentenced to 25 to 50 years

          8  in state prison for repeatedly raping a 94- year-

          9  old female resident at the facility during a two-

         10  month period in 1997.

         11                 Afraid and embarrassed, the victim

         12  guarded her terrifying secret for two years.  As she

         13  told our investigators, she was afraid other

         14  residents would shun her, or that she would be

         15  forced to leave the facility.

         16                 As you know, State law does not

         17  presently permit nursing home employers to request a

         18  criminal background check on prospective employees.

         19  Yet, it has been my Office's experience that 25

         20  percent of those health care workers we charge with

         21  patient abuse have had prior arrests for crimes,

         22  including the sale of drugs, sexual abuse, and

         23  felony assault.

         24                 I just spoke to you about Arthur

         25  Wallace who had been arrested and convicted for
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          2  raping a nursing home patient. What you do not know,

          3  and what his prospective employer also did not know,

          4  was that Wallace had been previously convicted of

          5  crimes, information that he chose not to disclose on

          6  his employment application.

          7                 In fact, Wallace had previously been

          8  court- martialed by the U.S. Army for having sexual

          9  contact with a 3- year- old girl he had been

         10  babysitting.  Wallace served six months of hard

         11  labor at a federal prison for his crime.  Later, he

         12  was convicted for illegally possessing a weapon.

         13  Yet, the Oneida Nursing Home knew none of this when

         14  it hired him.

         15                 Similarly, the Hallmark Nursing

         16  Center in Troy, New York, knew nothing about Nelson

         17  Simon's criminal past when it hired him as a nurse's

         18  aide trainee.  On the job for only two weeks, Simon

         19  was charged with striking and groping a 92- year-

         20  old female patient.  On his job application, Simon

         21  indicated that he had no prior criminal convictions

         22  when, in reality, he had a lengthy criminal record,

         23  and had served three years in state prison for

         24  first- degree assault.

         25                 Because of these cases and others
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          2  like them, Attorney General Spitzer has repeatedly

          3  called for legislation requiring all new nurse's

          4  aides and home care attendants to undergo criminal

          5  background checks.

          6                 You should know that 39 other states

          7  presently have laws requiring criminal background

          8  checks of nurse's aides and home care workers.  It

          9  is time for New York to take this important step.

         10                 In closing, I would like to say that

         11  27 years ago, New York State took a bold step into

         12  the future by creating the Medicaid Fraud Control

         13  Unit in the Attorney General's Office to protect its

         14  nursing home citizens.  In doing so, it helped shape

         15  the way America would investigate and prosecute

         16  health care fraud and abuse.  Once again, it is time

         17  for New York State to get in line with the rest of

         18  the country and help its nursing home citizens by

         19  passing legislation as recommended by your Committee

         20  and by Attorney General Spitzer, requiring criminal

         21  background checks of aides.

         22                 I thank you for this opportunity to

         23  appear before the Committee.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Thank you.  I am

         25  going to try to run this hearing today as fast as I
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          2  can.

          3                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY ATTORNEY GENERAL

          4  STAFFA:  Okay.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  But I have three

          6  questions for you, simple questions, yes or no.

          7                 The first question is, and you

          8  already said it, that the Attorney General is in

          9  favor of the three resolutions.  Yes?

         10                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY ATTORNEY GENERAL

         11  STAFFA:  Yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  And also in favor

         13  of fingerprinting.

         14                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY ATTORNEY GENERAL

         15  STAFFA:  Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  And employees who

         17  have started working and employees who will be

         18  hired.

         19                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY ATTORNEY GENERAL

         20  STAFFA:  Correct.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Okay.  And if we,

         22  this Committee is preparing a Bill of Rights for, to

         23  be posted in Center.  Do you think your Office would

         24  support and help us?

         25                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY ATTORNEY GENERAL
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          2  STAFFA:  I am almost 100 percent sure that we would

          3  support and help you in the areas we have discussed

          4  thus far.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  I have no more

          6  questions.  I think Simcha Felder has a question for

          7  you.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Okay, Council

          9  Member Felder ceded his time.  Just one quick time.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  I did not

         11  ceded my time.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  No, he did

         13  not cede his time, he allowed me to go first.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Oh, you are not

         15  going?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  I am going.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Why are you

         18  conceding?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Because he is

         20  older.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  We have to move

         22  this fast.  Okay, thank you.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  I am cuter.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  I apologize.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Thank you.
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          2  Given what we just heard, which was quite sickening.

          3    I would ask those who would be against this bill,

          4  this Reso., and hopefully law, the question why?

          5  Just, do you have, could you suggest a reason why

          6  somebody would be against this Reso.?

          7                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY ATTORNEY GENERAL

          8  STAFFA:  Over the course of years that we have been

          9  trying to push it, we have heard a number of things.

         10    The two most prominent being the cost that would

         11  be incurred by the Home Health Care agencies and the

         12  nursing homes.  And the other being that it would

         13  inhibit the hiring of employees.  The theory being

         14  that employees, even if they had minor offenses

         15  would not apply for positions knowing that their

         16  backgrounds would be checked out.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Okay, neither

         18  one of them is too good.  Thank you, Mr. Chair,

         19  thank you.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Thank you,

         21  Senator (sic) Diaz, and I apologize.

         22                 Question, with the hot regard to

         23  hospitals and nurses that work in hospitals, do the

         24  same, does anything exist of this sort for hospital

         25  workers, are criminal checks done?
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          2                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY ATTORNEY GENERAL

          3  STAFFA:  I do not believe so.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Why not?

          5                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY ATTORNEY GENERAL

          6  STAFFA:  I do not know the answer to that.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Okay.  So I

          8  want to, on record, Mr. Chair, I would like to

          9  sponsor a Resolution asking for the Legislature

         10  together with you and anyone, and everybody else on

         11  the Committee that hospital workers should go

         12  through the same checks.   They have access to drugs

         13  in the hospitals, and they should certainly go

         14  through the same checks that you are asking the

         15  aides and the nursing home workers to go through, I

         16  would like to sponsor that.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  You put it

         18  together, and we take a look at it.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  I am trying

         20  to run the meeting quickly.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Okay, Council

         22  Member Felder.  All right, thank you very much.

         23                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY ATTORNEY GENERAL

         24  STAFFA:  Thank you very much.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  You are in favor
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          2  for the resolution, so we would like to see people

          3  that are against that, so we find out why.

          4                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY ATTORNEY GENERAL

          5  STAFFA:  Sorry.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  No, thank you,

          7  thank you.  We have Cynthia Rudder from Nursing Home

          8  Community Coalition. Cynthia.

          9                 MS. RUDDER:  I am going to talk about

         10  Resolution 223, staffing and training issues.  It is

         11  interesting, before I begin my official testimony, I

         12  would just like to say, as we talk about improving

         13  care in nursing homes, background checks is one

         14  piece of it, and I would be glad to respond to

         15  questions about that, if anyone has any.  But

         16  improving care in nursing homes means having enough

         17  staff to care for people, it means training, it

         18  means good screening, it means changing the culture

         19  of nursing homes so that they become places where

         20  people want to both work and live. It is not a one

         21  thing, it is a whole environment.

         22                 So I would like to focus first on the

         23  staffing and the training.  I must admit, I did not

         24  see the articles in the Daily News, and so it hit me

         25  today when I came in, so I would be glad to just add
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          2  a few comments after my official testimony.

          3                 My name is Cynthia Rudder.  I am the

          4  Director of the Nursing Home Community Coalition of

          5  New York State.  We are a statewide coalition of 28

          6  consumers, civic and professional organizations,

          7  working for better nursing home care for over 22

          8  years.

          9                 In New York State nursing homes are

         10  extremely short staffed.  There is a crisis in New

         11  York State nursing homes.               Ninety- two

         12  percent of our nursing homes are reporting

         13  shortages, and 55 percent are reporting problems

         14  keeping staff, and that is an interesting issue.

         15  Nursing homes have a terrible time keeping good

         16  staff.

         17                 The median aide time provided to each

         18  resident today, is approximately two hours a day.

         19                 Caring for residents basic needs

         20  takes more than two hours a day.

         21                 A recent Center for Medicare and

         22  Medicaid Services (CMS) study show that direct aide

         23  time care of less than two hours a day per resident

         24  seriously impairs care.

         25                 Since the median aide time is only
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          2  two hours in New York State, at least reported on

          3  the Medicaid cost reports, almost half, over half of

          4  the nursing homes in New York State provide unsafe

          5  staffing levels for their residents.

          6                 Furthermore, according to the CMS

          7  study, the amount of aide time needed to provide the

          8  level of care at which all residents are helped to

          9  reach their highest physical and mental functioning,

         10  which is a Federal requirement, is about three hours

         11  per day per resident, 98 percent of our nursing

         12  homes in New York State fall below this, 98 percent.

         13                 There simply is not enough staff in

         14  New York nursing homes to take good, safe care of

         15  our elderly and disabled.

         16                 Compounding the consequences of low

         17  staffing is that while the numbers of residents in

         18  New York State nursing homes are growing, and their

         19  needs are becoming greater, staffing levels have

         20  remained about the same for five or more years.

         21                 I remember Joe Heinz, who was the

         22  first head of the Medicaid Fraud Control talking

         23  about abuse in nursing home, it was the 1970s, and

         24  when he talked about abuse, he said, one of the

         25  primary reasons for neglect and mistreatment in
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          2  nursing homes is not enough staff and not enough

          3  good training.

          4                 What does this mean for our nursing

          5  home residents, what does this actually mean?

          6                 Nearly 50 percent of our residents

          7  need help bathing.  Bath times take 10 or 15 minutes

          8  each; showers and baths take 10 to 30 minutes to

          9  each.

         10                 Ninety percent of our residents need

         11  some help going other the bathroom, taking a

         12  resident to the bathroom can take 10 to 15 minutes.

         13  Remember we have two hours median time of a nurse

         14  aide's time.

         15                 Thirty- three percent of our

         16  residents require personal hygiene care every time

         17  they are incontinent.  It can take at 10 to 15

         18  minutes to change a resident.

         19                 Almost 80 percent of our residents

         20  need some help eating.  It takes between 20 and 60

         21  minutes to completely feed a resident.

         22                 Forty- five percent of our residents

         23  are wheeled or need help getting out of a bed or a

         24  chair; 8 percent need constant supervision walking

         25  and 10 percent need intermittent supervision. It can
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          2  take 10 or 15 minutes to move a resident from one

          3  room to another.

          4                 In addition to providing these basic

          5  care services, nursing home staff must help dress

          6  residents, monitor and report on each resident's

          7  vital statistics, set up meals, give residents

          8  medication, make beds, provide grooming services,

          9  empty and measure catheter bags, wash hands between

         10  caring for residents, assess residents health, and

         11  perform may other duties with patients of average

         12  and more serious needs.

         13                 But you know, more importantly, the

         14  work of a nursing home staff requires much more than

         15  just completing tasks. Because nursing homes are

         16  homes for residents, nursing home staff must have

         17  time to just talk with and build relationships with

         18  residents in order to help residents develop a good

         19  quality of life, and I would say, in order to help

         20  staff feel that they are fulfilling the goal that

         21  they came to work in a nursing home, or you will not

         22  keep them.  And that is why many nursing homes are

         23  having trouble keeping staff.

         24                 If you add up the times needed to

         25  care for nursing home residents, you can see it
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          2  obviously takes more than two hours of a nurse

          3  aide's time a day, forgetting about the relationship

          4  building.

          5                 What are the staff requirements in

          6  New York State now?  We do not have any other than

          7  the Federal requirements.  And what are the Federal

          8  requirements?  They just say you have to have

          9  sufficient staff.

         10                 In New York State too many nursing

         11  homes have determined that sufficient staffing is at

         12  a level, according to the number of studies, the

         13  quality of care puts residents at risk.

         14                 As I look, by the way, at Resolution

         15  223, I notice that it only says regulate staffing.

         16  I would like to see it say that the State has to

         17  legislate, mandate staffing ratios, much different

         18  than just regulate.

         19                 Nursing home providers complain that

         20  there are not enough workers to hire.  While it is

         21  true that in New York City there is a shortage of

         22  licensed nurses, but not nurse aides.  And in

         23  Upstate New York there is a shortage of nurse aides.

         24    Nursing homes have created the problems

         25  themselves.   Over the last 7 or 8 years, as the
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          2  population of nursing homes became sicker, and there

          3  were many people looking for work, the staffing

          4  levels of nursing homes in New York State remained

          5  almost constant.  Many nursing home providers did

          6  not hire people when they could have.

          7                 Most industries that have problems

          8  recruiting staff raise salaries, give good benefits

          9  and make sure that there are good working

         10  conditions.  Many nursing home providers did not do

         11  any of these things.  Nursing homes are now waking

         12  up to the fact that they must do something to

         13  attract good staff.  They are attempting many

         14  positive things now.

         15                 However, we need to pass ratio

         16  legislation because, if left on their own, we do not

         17  believe that nursing homes will hire the needed

         18  staff.  They did not in past years, even as

         19  populations became more dependent and even as more

         20  money was being added to the system.

         21                 The introduced legislation in the

         22  Assembly and passed by the Assembly last year and

         23  introduced in the Senate, gives providers a number

         24  of years to comply.

         25                 I would like to skip in the interest
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          2  of time down to the training piece.  We can give you

          3  the numbers of that legislation, and I hope you

          4  change your resolution to say that it should pass

          5  legislation to mandate, and it has to mandate in the

          6  numbers that are there, it is 5:1 during the day,

          7  five residents for one nurse aide, 8:1 in the

          8  evening, and 12:1 at night.  That is what the

          9  legislation states.

         10                 I would like to spend the last few

         11  minutes of my testimony on nurse aide training.  We

         12  believe that nurse aide certification training must

         13  be expanded and enhanced.  My Subcommittee on

         14  Staffing Issues in Nursing Homes, has recently

         15  released a model CNA program, and I have a number of

         16  copies for the Committee.  Sir, if you want, do you

         17  want to just hand it to the Committee.  I do not

         18  have the 30.

         19                 These are some of the reasons why,

         20  and a list of the recommendations of the

         21  Subcommittee:

         22                 Certified Nurse Aide Assistants

         23  provide approximately 90 percent of the direct care

         24  in nursing homes and serve as the eyes and ears of

         25  the nurses to whom they report.  A 1985 study
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          2  conducted by the National Citizens Coalition for

          3  Nursing Home Reform revealed that residents believe

          4  the single most important factor influencing the

          5  quality of care in their life is the presence of

          6  well- trained staff that is friendly, cheerful,

          7  competent and polite.

          8                 Today's nursing home residents

          9  require more complex and specialized care, and staff

         10  training has not changed to accommodate for the

         11  increase resident acuity.

         12                 Researcher Karl Pilemer found that 40

         13  to 50 percent to all nursing assistants leave during

         14  orientation and training. Nursing assistants report

         15  frustration with their inability to get everything

         16  done, what a surprise.  Inadequate practical

         17  experience during training results in individuals

         18  who are ill prepared for real world conditions.  As

         19  a May 2001 GAO report summarizes: "the 2000 IOM

         20  study of quality in long- term care identified

         21  several environmental and job design factors that

         22  directly affect nurse aide turnover, including

         23  adequacy of training."

         24                 The high level of labor defection and

         25  turnover experienced in the past five years during
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          2  the booming economy could in part be laid to nurse

          3  aide training inadequacies and a long- term culture

          4  devaluing front- line workers.

          5                 Federal law requires that individuals

          6  only complete a minimum of 75 hours of training,

          7  pass a certification exam and skills test and

          8  participate in 12 hours of in- service education

          9  each year.  This is clearly not enough.

         10                 Manicurists, by the way, in the State

         11  of New York require 250 hours of training, and

         12  cosmetologists 1,000.  And we think that 75 hours of

         13  training to take care of our senior citizens, who

         14  have very depended care needs is enough.

         15                 Let me just end with our

         16  recommendations, because I know that you have time.

         17                 One of the most important things that

         18  we would like to see happen is to require an

         19  increase in the State of New York, from 100 hours,

         20  which we require.  We require 25 hours more than the

         21  Federal 75, and by the way, the reason we got it up

         22  to 100 had to do with the advocacy, a number of

         23  advocates that are going to be talking today, as

         24  well as myself, in 1985.  But we think it should, at

         25  least, go up to 155, and you have in front of you
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          2  the model program that we think needs to be in place

          3  in New York State.  So we urge you please to try to

          4  pass the resolution, again, 223 just says regulate

          5  training.  We already regulate training in the State

          6  of New York, but we must now say the hours have to

          7  be increased. And you have a list of our

          8  Subcommittee on Staffing there.

          9                 If I may just end, making some

         10  comments on the background checks.  We are clearly

         11  in favor of background checks for anyone who has

         12  interaction with either nursing home residents, home

         13  care workers, or hospital workers.  That by the way

         14  includes not only nurse aides, it includes

         15  physicians, it includes nurses, it may include

         16  housekeeping staff.  We are not against that, it has

         17  to be everybody.  And secondly, and I believe the

         18  legislation does do this, the background checks that

         19  brings up criminal activity, must be criminal

         20  activity that in fact will affect their care. Things

         21  like felonies and abuses, and I think that the law,

         22  the proposed law does do that.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Any question?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  I am just
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          2  going to ask you again, even though it is not your

          3  jurisdiction, to your knowledge do nurses in

          4  hospitals have any such obligations or any

          5  restrictions on criminal checks?

          6                 MS. RUDDER:  By the way, as far as I

          7  know, I know that the Assistant District Attorney

          8  said that we do not have anything that would permit

          9  providers to do background checks in the New York

         10  State.  I think we, any provider in the State can do

         11  a background check, I think they are permitted to,

         12  they are not required to.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  All right,

         14  that was not my question.

         15                 MS. RUDDER:  And I just wanted to

         16  clarify that.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Sure.

         18                 MS. RUDDER:  And in hospitals I think

         19  it is correct, I do not know that they also do not

         20  know.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Okay, so I

         22  again, reiterating that I want very much for that to

         23  go forward with your help, Mr. Chairman.

         24                 MS. RUDDER:  But I hope it is all

         25  workers, not just the nurse aides.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Yes.

          3                 MS. RUDDER:  Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  We have been

          5  joined by Council Member Domenic Recchia from

          6  Brooklyn.  And you have a question?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Good

          8  morning.  I just wanted to out, you said for the

          9  nurse aides it should be five patients to a nurse's

         10  aide.  Do you have any recommendations for the

         11  nurses, or certified nurse?

         12                 MS. RUDDER:  Yes, the nurse aides are

         13  certified nurse aides.  Are you talking about for

         14  the licensed nurses?

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Licensed

         16  nurses.

         17                 MS. RUDDER:  Yes, the legislation has

         18  that in, and I must admit I do not recall all of the

         19  numbers, because we divided it up into the

         20  supervision and the direct care.  But we have

         21  specific language in that that talks about how many

         22  residents they should oversee in direct care, and

         23  that is in the legislation. That has been introduced

         24  in both the Assembly and the Senate, and that is why

         25  we are urging those two.  I can get that to you, if
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          2  you like.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  I get the

          4  impression that some of these nurses, these nursing

          5  homes, they substitute nurses aides for licensed

          6  nurse.

          7                 MS. RUDDER:  No, they cannot do that.

          8    There are certain requirements about that there

          9  has to be one registered nurse on one shift during a

         10  24- hour period.  Many of them substitute LPN's,

         11  Licensed Practical Nurses, but they cannot

         12  substitute an unlicensed person for a licensed

         13  person.  For instance, unlicensed personnel cannot

         14  dispense medication, that is against the Nurse's

         15  Practitioner Act.

         16                 Now if you are asking if some nursing

         17  homes are doing this, maybe.  But I think generally

         18  they are not, and they are hiring RNs and LPNs,

         19  again, we do not think in the right numbers.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  What is your

         21  number one recommendation to keep the nurses, keep

         22  the employees?  You said here that they have such a

         23  high rate of losing their staff.  What is your

         24  number one recommendation to keep that staff?

         25                 MS. RUDDER:  It is hard to pick one
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          2  recommendation. As I said, I think it is, to me one

          3  of the biggest issues has to do with the working

          4  conditions in nursing homes.  I think for many

          5  people when they think of nursing homes, they do not

          6  want to live there and they do not want to work

          7  there.  And some of the reasons are how the nursing

          8  homes are run?  So I think a big issue is making

          9  workers feel respected, having, making sure their

         10  skills are being used, making sure that they are

         11  trained to do the job so that they feel good about

         12  it.  Making sure that there is enough staff so that

         13  they can do the job that they were hired to do,

         14  comfortably.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Let me, you said,

         16  one of the reasons why nurse's do not want to work

         17  in nursing home, because the way in which nursing

         18  home are wrong, how are they wrong?

         19                 MS. RUDDER:  Well, one of the issues

         20  is nursing homes are, not all of them, but they are

         21  often run as institutions, which have certain

         22  routine and rules.  I will give you a story.  I was

         23  speaking before some nurse aides one day, and one

         24  nurse aide said to me, I would like to take care of

         25  the residents the way you are telling me to.
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          2                 But let me tell you a story, she

          3  said, I had to give one of my residents a bath, it

          4  was Tuesday morning.  And I went to him and I said,

          5  it is time for a bath.  And he said, I do not want a

          6  bath.  And I said, why?  He said the bathroom was

          7  too cold.  So I went to my supervisor, and I asked

          8  her, and do you know what she said to me?  She said,

          9  give him a bath, it is Tuesday, it is your bath

         10  time, you have got five baths to give today, you

         11  better give him that bath.

         12                 So then she had to go down the hall,

         13  she told me and pull him kicking and screaming down

         14  the hall to give him a bath. This was not a woman

         15  who went home to her husband that night and said,

         16  wow, I had a great day today and I wish my daughter

         17  or son would grow up to be a nurse aide.  So a piece

         18  of it is, why do we have a situation, at least, for

         19  this woman where the nursing home is set up, that

         20  there are tasks that have to be done come hell or

         21  high water, and that you have got to do them, and it

         22  has nothing to do with the needs of the residents or

         23  even the needs of the worker. Why could not the

         24  worker, for instance, have been empowered to have

         25  dealt with that problem without going to her
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          2  supervisor?

          3                 In some nursing homes she would have

          4  been able to figure out a way to make the bathroom

          5  warm.  She might have said, Mr. Jones, why don't we

          6  give you your bath this afternoon when the sun comes

          7  in on the light, and she could have done that

          8  because she had the autonomy to make certain

          9  choices.  In some nursing homes she has no autonomy

         10  at all.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Would you say that

         12  they would not like to take a bath because they are

         13  afraid of the workers?

         14                 MS. RUDDER:  No, I did not say that

         15  at all.  I think that person did not want to take a

         16  bath because the bathroom was too cold.

         17                 You are saying, are some residents

         18  afraid of workers?  Sure.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  I am asking you.

         20                 MS. RUDDER:  Sure.  That resident was

         21  not, but yes, we do have some instances - -

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Why would a client

         23  be afraid of a worker?

         24                 MS. RUDDER:  Well, there is a number

         25  of issues. Residents tell us that they feel they are
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          2  intimidated if they make complaints.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Why?

          4                 MS. RUDDER:  Why do they feel they

          5  are intimidated?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  If I am hired to

          7  serve and protect and to take care of someone, why

          8  would that person be afraid of me?

          9                 MS. RUDDER:  You are asking me if

         10  there are any residents who are ever afraid of

         11  workers, and I would say yes.  Are all residents

         12  afraid of workers?  I would say no.  So you are

         13  saying why are they afraid of some workers?  Well,

         14  some workers are, clearly there are some workers who

         15  should not ever work in a nursing home.  Definitely

         16  agree with that.

         17                 An individual who is going to rape

         18  somebody, that I heard, an individual who is going

         19  to steal, an individual who is looking to hit

         20  somebody, they should never work in a nursing home,

         21  and I would be afraid of them too.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  I think according

         23  to the senior the citizens, at night, when everybody

         24  is sleeping to give them a bath.

         25                 MS. RUDDER:  I am sorry?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  To take a senior

          3  citizen, a person at night when everyone else is

          4  sleeping, to give them a bath, I would be scared.

          5                 MS. RUDDER:  This was not at night

          6  time.  I am sure I understand you.   This story was

          7  during the day on a Tuesday morning.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Oh, I am sorry,

          9  okay.

         10                 MS. RUDDER: No, no, no.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Okay, thank you.

         12                 MS. RUDDER:  No that was the person

         13  who did not care about her residents who did that.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Thank you very

         15  much.  I am going to call on all the other speakers,

         16  please, we have a lot of people that would like to

         17  testify.  Bear in mind that you have to cooperate so

         18  that all the rest could testify, otherwise I will

         19  have to go to the clock, and you do not want me to

         20  go to the clock.              So I am going to call

         21  Jean Murphy, Friends and Relatives of

         22  Institutionalized Aged, and Geoff Lieberman,

         23  Coalition of Institutionalized Aged.

         24                 MS. MURPHY:  Good morning.  I am Jean

         25  Murphy, Executive Director of FRIA, Friends and
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          2  Relatives of Institutionalized Aged.  And I thank

          3  you for arranging these hearings this morning and

          4  proposing these resolutions to call attention to the

          5  needs of nursing home residents.  And I thank you

          6  for the opportunity to testify today.

          7                 FRIA is a consumer advocacy

          8  organization that has been working to improve in New

          9  York nursing homes for 25 years.  We talked to

         10  nearly 2,000 New York families with elderly

         11  relatives each year on our telephone help line.

         12  Your constituents might want to know about our

         13  telephone hotline.  It's free, it's bilingual in

         14  English and Spanish, and I attached a flyer to my

         15  testimony, which I hope you will pass onto your

         16  staff that serve your constituents. Because I think

         17  while we are waiting for the bigger changes that

         18  legislation might bring about, we might, with the

         19  helpline help individual families with individual

         20  problems now.

         21                 There are any number of

         22  investigations and studies that point to the problem

         23  of understaffing and the harm that it causes

         24  residents.  You have heard about some of them, I am

         25  sure you will about more today.  But FRIA does not
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          2  need the studies and investigations, because we hear

          3  the evidence of understaffing every day from our

          4  helpline callers.  Any regular visitor to a nursing

          5  home sees the effects of under staffing regularly,

          6  and visitors know about the harm that results

          7  because it happens to their mothers and fathers and

          8  their grandmothers.

          9                 What happens is not usually sudden or

         10  dramatic.  But it is heartbreaking, unnecessary and

         11  wrong.

         12                 People move to nursing homes because

         13  they need help with everyday activities.  A father

         14  in a wheelchair needs help to get up and go to the

         15  bathroom, exactly the kind of help you would expect

         16  in a nursing home.  Yet, everyday, overburdened

         17  staff do not get there promptly.  Eventually, the

         18  man loses control and sits wet and soiled, asking

         19  now to be cleaned.  The result is that he's put in

         20  diapers and expected to use them, so he's less

         21  likely to get help when he needs to go to the

         22  bathroom.  Soon he gives up and becomes totally

         23  incontinent.  For him, it is humiliating and

         24  limiting, for his family who watches and cannot do

         25  anything, it is agonizing.
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          2                 A mother who is very ill and bed

          3  bound needs help to avoid skin breakdown and bed

          4  sores.  Nurses know how to do this, frequent

          5  turning, repositioning.  The general rule is every

          6  two hours.  With proper care, almost all bedsores

          7  are avoidable.  But the rates are high in New York

          8  nursing homes, the statewide average approaching 20

          9  percent.  Bedsores are painful and dangerous because

         10  of possible infection.  Relatives often visit for

         11  long stretches and see that no repositioning is

         12  done, but are then told that the resulting bedsores

         13  are unavoidable.  The nurses know better, often the

         14  families know better too.

         15                 There is a long list of time

         16  intensive tasks that prevent harm to elderly

         17  residents.  To keep them healthy you need all of

         18  them done.  Over committed staff regularly skimp on

         19  all of them.

         20                 Residents who need help eating, lose

         21  weight and get sick when they do not get help.  But

         22  relatives tell us regularly that they see full meal

         23  trays placed before a resident and removed 20 or 30

         24  minutes later still full and with no help offered

         25  for eating in between.
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          2                 Residents who fail to use their

          3  muscles regularly, lose the ability to them at all.

          4  And relatives tell us they see parents lose the

          5  ability to walk, because no one has time to coax

          6  them up and help them walk a little every day.

          7                 Painful rashes worsen when no one has

          8  time to apply the ointments prescribed or to clean

          9  and change soiled Depends promptly.

         10                 When there is not enough staff,

         11  residents who are in danger of falling may have to

         12  sit by the nurses station and forgo favorite TV

         13  programs or activities.  Residents may never get

         14  outside to garden or patio areas that are there to

         15  be used. Residents may lose memory and mental health

         16  benefits of social interaction and stimulation, if

         17  no one is talking to them, or interacting with them.

         18                 Regular visitors tell us about all

         19  these effects. They do not need studies or inside

         20  information about understaffing. They see it,

         21  especially on nights and weekends.  They see that

         22  the staffing levels claimed by the nursing homes are

         23  not in place.  And even the levels claimed are often

         24  dangerously close to the levels government studies

         25  say cause harm to residents.

                                                            45

          1  COMMITTEE ON AGING

          2                 FRIA and the families it represents

          3  have concluded that only mandated minimum

          4  staff/resident ratios will change this. We supported

          5  the safe staffing bill that was introduced in the

          6  State Legislature last year, we will support one

          7  next year, and we will continue to work for safe

          8  staffing legislation until we have it in this state.

          9    And we are glad to see that this Committee look at

         10  this problem and add your support to getting this

         11  legislation passed.

         12                 The second issue that you are

         13  highlighting in these hearings is requiring that New

         14  York nursing homes check criminal backgrounds before

         15  hiring staff in nursing homes.  While we would like

         16  to see background checks apply to all employees,

         17  administrators on down.  The requirements in the

         18  bills that you are supporting are a major first step

         19  to bringing New York into line with the 39 other

         20  states that now require criminal background checks.

         21                 The helpline callers, the families we

         22  talk to cannot imagine why a responsible

         23  administrator would fail to find out information

         24  about a criminal past, when he or she is hiring

         25  caregivers for vulnerable, often totally dependent
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          2  elderly residents, and this is especially true,

          3  because the care is often given one- on- one in

          4  private, and because there is so much documented

          5  abuse in nursing homes.

          6                 We support this legislation, we thank

          7  you for your interest in it, and your support of it,

          8  and for these resolutions.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Thank you for your

         10  support.

         11                 MR. LIEBERMAN:  Good morning.  Thank

         12  you for inviting me to speak.  My name is Geoff

         13  Lieberman.  I am the Executive Director of the

         14  Coalition of Institutionalized Aged and Disabled,

         15  call CIAD for short.  It is a non- profit, consumer-

         16  led advocacy organization of adult home and nursing

         17  home residents and residents' councils.  CIAD was

         18  established in 1973, and our mission is to provide

         19  residents with the information and skills they need

         20  to advocate for themselves, to protect and promote

         21  the rights of residents, and to improve the quality

         22  of their lives and their care.

         23                 By far, one of the most pressing

         24  concerns for our nursing home resident constituency

         25  is the crisis in staffing we are experiencing in our
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          2  nursing homes.  There are presently no regulations

          3  in either federal and New York State law that

          4  specifies the minimum number of staff required to

          5  care for a specific number of residents in a

          6  facility.  Instead, the law only requires that a

          7  nursing home provides sufficient staff based upon a

          8  facility's own determination of the needs of the

          9  residents who live there.

         10                 I will admit to you that I was one of

         11  those advocates, who once believed that this was a

         12  good idea.  I felt that if we were to establish a

         13  minimum ratio of staff to residents that minimum

         14  would automatically become the maximum staffing

         15  level, in spite of the varying care needs of

         16  residents, or the particular case mix of a facility.

         17    Better that facilities have flexibility to respond

         18  to individual residents' different needs.  After

         19  many years, however, the logic of this argument has

         20  not been realized. Instead, we have been witness to

         21  an increasingly frailer and sicker nursing home

         22  population without the necessary increase in

         23  staffing that caring for these residents require.

         24  As a report from the federal government's Health

         25  Care Financing Administration shows, now known as
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          2  the Center for Medicare and Medicaid Services, 98

          3  percent of our state's nursing homes do not provide

          4  sufficient staff to care for this residents' basic

          5  needs, and approximately 50 percent of the homes

          6  have staffing levels that are so low residents are

          7  being put at risk.  Nursing homes have failed to

          8  meet the challenge that flexibility provided them.

          9  And we are now faced with a problem of crisis

         10  proportions that I believe can only be addressed

         11  with the mandating of minimum staffing ratios as

         12  provided by bills introduced by Assemblyman Richard

         13  Gottfried and Senator Kemp Hannon in the New York

         14  State Legislature.

         15                 What is the cost of this crisis?  One

         16  resident I spoke to told me that all too often only

         17  one nurse is assigned to his unit of 37 residents.

         18  The nurse has to give out medications, as well as

         19  change bandages and complete her paperwork.  She is,

         20  in his words, always running around, and if you need

         21  her, forget about it.  There are sometimes only

         22  three nurse aides on this unit during the weekday

         23  shift, and it is common on the weekend.  As a

         24  result, it is a waiting game.  For example he can

         25  put himself to bed, but needs assistance to be
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          2  cleaned for the evening.  One evening he was in bed

          3  by 7:30 p.m., but had to wait almost three and a

          4  half hours for this assistance to wash up.  He also

          5  needs assistance in going to the bathroom, and quite

          6  often has to wait over 30 minutes for help.  He told

          7  me that getting this help was something he had to

          8  fight for time and time again.

          9                 Even with these problems of his own,

         10  what he said was really upsetting to him was the

         11  situation of the several of his neighbors who need

         12  assistance in eating.  It is usually a rush, and

         13  before a person has swallowed the food in their

         14  mouth, the spoon is already in front of them.  He

         15  said these folks have about 15 minutes to eat, and

         16  if a person takes too much time, the food is left

         17  there, because the aide has to move on to someone

         18  else.

         19                 The majority of residents I speak to

         20  do not blame the nurse aides, but in fact, recognize

         21  the extraordinarily demanding and stressful

         22  circumstances of their job.  Indeed, residents and

         23  nurse aides are allies in this effort to improve the

         24  quality of residents' life and care and the working

         25  conditions in nursing homes.  These issues go hand
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          2  in hand.

          3                 The fallout of inadequate staffing

          4  levels in not only measured in inadequate care, but

          5  in the inability of residents and staff to forge

          6  relationships with one another, whether it is the

          7  small talk that enriches our day or the words of

          8  empathy and support that helps to heal us as much as

          9  the medical care we receive.  We must remember that

         10  nursing homes are not just where residents receive

         11  care but a place where they make their home.  The

         12  quality of their life and their psycho- social

         13  needs, such as their relationships with staff, being

         14  treated with dignity and respect and living in a

         15  homelike environment, are too easily ignored or fall

         16  by the wayside when staff have to struggle mightily

         17  to complete tasks of bed- making and diaper

         18  changing.  For good quality of life and care for

         19  residents, nurse aides' job descriptions must go

         20  beyond this task orientation, but with insufficient

         21  staffing, this becomes difficult, if not impossible.

         22    This is borne out by both the residents and staff

         23  that CIAD and the Nursing Home Community Coalition

         24  of New York State have worked with in several

         25  projects to improve the quality of life of nursing
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          2  home residents. Residents and staff have told us how

          3  important resident- staff interactions is to

          4  residents, yet residents and staff agree that staff

          5  do not have enough time to have relationships with

          6  residents because there just is not enough help.

          7                 Besides the need for staff and

          8  adequate staffing, another issue that is important

          9  to nursing home residents is the need for

         10  improvements in the training and education of nurse

         11  aides. It is an issue that is very much related to

         12  inadequate staffing, because staff shortages

         13  turnover a staff and a reliance on part time

         14  substitute aides leads to a nursing home workforce

         15  that does not know the individual nursing home

         16  resident or what the individual resident needs.  A

         17  demanding and stressful workplace and the growing

         18  complexity and frailty of nursing home residents has

         19  to be addressed with major changes in the nurse aide

         20  training curriculum.

         21                 The Nursing Home Community

         22  Coalition's Staffing Subcommittee, of which I am a

         23  member, has recommended that the required number of

         24  training hours for certified nurse aides be expanded

         25  from the minimum 100 hours now required by New York
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          2  State regulation to 155 hours.  This will enable

          3  nurse aides to be given training in such things as

          4  stress and time management skills, working as part

          5  of a team, and dealing with difficult residents,

          6  such as those with dementia and cognitive

          7  impairments.  The Subcommittee's recommendations

          8  also include changes in the training process, such

          9  as allowing greater amounts of time for out of

         10  classroom, clinical, and lab applications and

         11  mentoring by senior aides.  I urge you to support

         12  the Nursing Home Community Coalition Staffing

         13  Subcommittee's Certified Nurse Aide Model Program.

         14                 I also urge you to support mandated

         15  staffing levels. The challenges to achieving

         16  adequate staffing levels in our nursing homes are

         17  daunting ones, and include overcoming the problems

         18  of recruiting and retaining staff due to poor

         19  working conditions.  Not to do so, however,

         20  continues to put our current and future nursing home

         21  population at risk, and as a community condemns us

         22  all.

         23                 Thank you, again, very much for

         24  holding these hearings.  And just to answer a

         25  previous question from a Council member, in terms of
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          2  the suggested ratio for nurses in the bills in the

          3  New York State Legislature.  For supervisory nurses

          4  during the day, the legislation calls for 1:15, in

          5  the evening 1:25, and in the night 1:35.  And for

          6  Direct Care Nurses during the day 1:10, in the

          7  evening 1:15, and at night 1:20.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Thank you.  So

          9  both of you, your testimony today are in favor of

         10  the resolution?

         11                 MR. LIEBERMAN:  Yes, absolutely.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Thank you.  I have

         13  no questions.

         14                 MR. LIEBERMAN:  Thank you very much.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Helen Dunwell-

         16  Inniss from New York Counties Registered Nurses

         17  Association, and Denice Lugten from Nurses

         18  Association of the Counties of Long Island.

         19                 Good morning.

         20                 MS. DUNWELL- INNISS:  Good morning,

         21  Reverend Diaz, members of the Committee on Aging and

         22  other distinguished guests. My name is Helen

         23  Dunwell- Inniss, and I am a Registered Nurse and

         24  President- elect of the New York Counties Registered

         25  Nurses Association, better known as NYCRNA.  Our
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          2  professional membership association consisting of

          3  3,000 registered nurses in Manhattan, the Bronx, and

          4  Staten Island, will celebrate its Centennial

          5  Anniversary in May 2004.

          6                 I am pleased to bring testimony and

          7  speak in support of Resolution No. 223 for

          8  legislation to regulate staffing and training

          9  standards in nursing homes.  I understand as

         10  identified by several studies, and by nurses aides,

         11  residents and families of residents, the current

         12  nurse aide curriculum does not address many issues

         13  deemed important in light of the nursing home

         14  population changes.  This population is a higher-

         15  at- risk group and requires much more complex care

         16  than when initially considered by the Omnibus Budget

         17  Reconciliation Act of 19*7.  At that time, OBRA

         18  federally mandated 75 hours of training, 12 hours of

         19  in- service education and passing a certification

         20  exam to become a certified nurses aide.

         21                 Our certified nursing assistant

         22  training requirements have not changed with needs.

         23  Even though New York is one of the few states which

         24  require 100 hours of training, more than the

         25  federally mandated 75 hours, many experts consider

                                                            55

          1  COMMITTEE ON AGING

          2  this to be insufficient.

          3                 NYCRNA as well supports extending the

          4  curriculum to include several items of process.  For

          5  example, it is not just what assistants are taught,

          6  but what they are not taught, such as communication,

          7  time management and stress management, just to list

          8  a few.

          9                 Socialization, as well as the culture

         10  and environment of long- term care should be part of

         11  the curriculum because the certified nursing

         12  assistant is an integral part of the health care

         13  team, as well as the first front line hands- on

         14  worker.

         15                 Additionally, learning skills need to

         16  include soft items such as decision- making,

         17  communications, and problem- solving. Another

         18  important point is consideration of the way adults

         19  learn. Adults learn at their own pace, some quickly,

         20  while others learn slowly.  One thing is certain,

         21  adults do not learn in the same way that children

         22  learn in a classroom.

         23                 Let us not forget about the bonding

         24  between the resident and the certified nursing

         25  assistant.  This contributes to a more positive
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          2  transition for the resident and to a better quality

          3  of life.  Frequent staff turnover is a major

          4  detractor of establishing long- term care life.  The

          5  long- term care facility becomes the resident's

          6  home.

          7                 Several familiar studies have proven

          8  that 98 percent of New York State nursing homes are

          9  understaffed even to care for the basic needs of

         10  their residents.

         11                 On behalf of the NYCRNA board of

         12  directors, I am pleased to bring our strongest

         13  support toward the enactment of this legislation.

         14  We represent the voice of nurses right here in New

         15  York City.

         16                 Thank you, Mr. Chairperson.

         17                 MS. LUGTEN:  Good day, Chairman

         18  Honorable Reverend Ruben Diaz and other

         19  distinguished New York City Council Committee on

         20  Aging members and guests.  My name is Denice Lugten.

         21    I am a registered nurse with a Master's degree in

         22  Nursing Administration, and certification in Nursing

         23  Administration Advanced and Diabetes Education.  I

         24  am the Executive Director of the Nurses Association

         25  of the Counties of Long Island, Inc., District 14 of
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          2  the New York State Nurses Association, which

          3  represent registered nurses in Brooklyn, Queens, and

          4  Nassau Counties.  I also work on an on- call basis

          5  in a nursing home.

          6                 On behalf of the Nurses Association,

          7  I am here to support Resolution No. 223, which seeks

          8  state legislation to regulate staffing levels and

          9  training standards in New York State, and Resolution

         10  No. 361 for adoption of Assembly Bill A.4601, which

         11  would require fingerprinting of current and

         12  prospective nursing home and home care agency

         13  personnel, and would established a statewide

         14  registry of home care services personnel.

         15                 Problems of the elderly population

         16  that the nation is experiencing are steadily

         17  increasing as the baby boomerang population grays.

         18  In addition to suffering problems with their health,

         19  finances, and access to quality care, the elderly in

         20  nursing homes, hospice and home care programs can be

         21  victims of abusive and/or criminal health care

         22  employees.

         23                 Fundamental elements of the provision

         24  of care and services to the elderly, one of the most

         25  vulnerable groups in our country with many no longer
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          2  able to care for themselves, must be assured.  The

          3  HCFA study conducted in 2000 showed nursing homes do

          4  not provide enough staff to care for the basic needs

          5  of each resident.  In addition, the difference in

          6  staffing from one nursing home to the next can be

          7  substantial.  RN coverage on the day shift for

          8  comparable resident acuity in different nursing

          9  homes may vary from 25 to 50 residents to 80 to 100

         10  residents per RN.  On the evening and night shift,

         11  it is not unusual for there to be only one LPN

         12  caring from 25 to 50 residents in the long- term

         13  care setting, especially on weekends and holidays.

         14  Unfortunately, there are times when due to sick

         15  calls and inability to replace needed staff, there

         16  may be only one LPN covering two units, which may

         17  have 80 residents or more.  It is not unusual on the

         18  evening and night shift for only one registered

         19  nurse to supervise the care of 200 residents and all

         20  the staff assigned to those residents.

         21                 As a result adequate monitoring by

         22  the nurse of the care given by the nursing

         23  assistants is not always possible. Nursing

         24  assistants provide 90 percent of the direct hands-

         25  on care to residents.  Nursing assistants bathes,
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          2  feeds, groom, toilets, dresses, transfers,

          3  transports, interacts with the elderly while

          4  providing the most intimate tasks for comfort and

          5  safety of these patients, left frail and helpless

          6  due to age and possibly illness.

          7                 Lack of close supervision provides

          8  ample opportunity for predators to victimize those

          9  they care for in many ways that are difficult to

         10  discover.  For example, theft of a narcotic pain

         11  patch medication.  Duragesic or fentanyl transdermal

         12  system is indicated for the treatment of chronic

         13  pain, such as malignancy, that cannot be managed by

         14  lesser means.  It requires continuous opioid

         15  administration in the form of a patch.  This patch

         16  is applied to the skin of the chest wall, under

         17  garments worn by the resident.  It remains in place

         18  for three days, providing the continuous delivery of

         19  the potent opioid analgesic.  The patch can be

         20  easily removed from the resident and sold or used

         21  personally by the predator.  The half- life of the

         22  medication is three to twelve hours.  In the

         23  elderly, the half- life is not yet known, but it is

         24  thought to be prolonged.  This may delay the report

         25  of pain by the resident, making discovery of when
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          2  the incident occurred and identification of the

          3  predator impossible.

          4                 Thefts of patient property such as

          5  gold locket containing a family photo is another

          6  example.  The loss of the item is not just physical,

          7  it is also the loss of a connection with loved ones.

          8    This can cause problems such as depression,

          9  withdrawal and isolation of the resident.

         10                 Bruising, tell- tale signs of

         11  physical abuse, many not appear until one to three

         12  days have passed.  On dark skinned individuals,

         13  bruising may not be able to be detected at all.

         14                 One a predator has been employed in a

         15  facility, detection and expulsion can be difficult.

         16  The elderly may be reluctant to report thefts or

         17  abuse, fearing retaliation.  The management team may

         18  be unable to collect sufficient data to help isolate

         19  the perpetrator, especially when the individual

         20  floats to different units within the facility or

         21  different facilities as occurs with staff

         22  replacement from agencies.  Nursing homes provide a

         23  home for the aged, a home until they die.  Would you

         24  want a criminal entering your home having access to

         25  your property and caring for you?  This is what is
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          2  happening according to "Checking Care Givers," an

          3  article printed in Friday, September 13, 2002 in

          4  Newsday, on A. Holly Patterson Geriatric Center.

          5  The article states, "Thirteen of the aides have been

          6  convicted of felonies and misdemeanors including

          7  assault, robbery, prostitution, and shoplifting,

          8  while at least four had disorderly conduct

          9  violations. Some have served jail or prison time.  A

         10  handful have lengthy records of crimes dating back

         11  10 years.  Others were center employees when they

         12  committed crimes.

         13                 It is important to take all possible

         14  steps to avoid hiring a predator in the first place.

         15    Relying on the information the applicant provides

         16  is not reliable in cases where the applicant lies on

         17  the application.  The use of past employment

         18  references is a poor screening tool when limited

         19  information is provided, such as dates of employment

         20  only, or the past employer may fail to state

         21  problems encountered with the employee fearing a

         22  lawsuit if a poor reference is provided.

         23                 Therefore, to avoid hiring people

         24  with known criminal background, employers need to be

         25  able to conduct accurate and reliable background
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          2  checks.  They also need access to a statewide

          3  registry utilizing fingerprints to avoid predators

          4  gaining employment under false identification.  New

          5  York State Assemblyman Bob Sweeney reports in his

          6  Fall 2002 newsletter that, "40,000 cases of identity

          7  theft are reported in New York annually."

          8  Fingerprinting is a reliable method to conduct

          9  background checks. The possibility of identity

         10  changes by assuming stolen identity information,

         11  inaccurate applications and reference information is

         12  nullified with the use of fingerprints.

         13                 Many health agencies currently

         14  conduct criminal background checks as part of their

         15  employment screening process. But without statewide

         16  standardization, the benefit of the checks is lost

         17  when predators apply to facilities that do not

         18  provide screening.

         19                 In the fast paced world today of

         20  quick, easy, inexpensive computer access, it is not

         21  unreasonable for health care employers to do the

         22  checks and maintain a registry in order to provide

         23  safeguards to protect the elderly from individuals

         24  that pose a threat to those they care for.  I

         25  believe that a requirement for fingerprinting and
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          2  criminal background checks, while a complex issue,

          3  will send a clear message of zero tolerance to

          4  predators, that they need not apply for positions as

          5  care givers.

          6                 The nursing profession has always had

          7  a deep concern and involvement as an advocate for

          8  health care concerns of those they care for.  We

          9  must continue to work together to make it possible

         10  for those advancing in years to lead healthy, safe

         11  and meaningful lives.

         12                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         13  share the information.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Let me put it in

         15  the record, you already said it, but I would like to

         16  hear it again.  The two of you are in favor of the

         17  resolutions?

         18                 MS. DUNWELL- INNISS:  Yes, we are.

         19                 MS. LUGTEN:  Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Thank you.  From

         21  1199 SEIU, Jay Sackman, and Christopher Olechowski

         22  and Joseph Campanella from Home Care Council of New

         23  York City.

         24                 MR. SACKMAN:  Good morning.  My name

         25  is Jay Sackman, I am the Executive Vice President of
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          2  1199 SEIU, the Service Employees International

          3  Union.  Our union represents 1.4 million workers

          4  across the country and in Canada, 150,000 of whom

          5  are nursing home workers.  In New York State alone,

          6  of the 220,000, 1199 members, 50,000 of them are

          7  nursing home workers.  Personally, I have been

          8  representing nursing home workers since 1968, so I

          9  have some knowledge of the work that nursing home

         10  workers perform.

         11                 I want to start off by saying that I

         12  support everything that Cynthia Rudder said, and

         13  Geoff Lieberman said, and Jean Murphy said.  And I

         14  also support Resolution 223 on the issue of

         15  improving staffing ratios in nursing homes, and

         16  rather than read my testimony, I think you have

         17  copies of my testimony, and you can read that

         18  yourself.

         19                 I want to try to put a face on the

         20  problem, and talk about the most important things

         21  that I think our elected leaders could do to deal

         22  with the problem.

         23                 First of all, I think that in New

         24  York State, nursing homes provide high quality care,

         25  just not enough of it, and that is the real key to
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          2  the problem here, that there just are not enough

          3  staff to take care of the residents in our nursing

          4  homes. You heard stories before, let me put a little

          5  bit more detail on it, a little bit more meat on the

          6  bone.

          7                 An average nursing home worker on a

          8  day shift in New York City, a nurse's aide has to

          9  take care of about 10 residents. Now what does that

         10  mean?  That means on a seven and a half or an eight-

         11  hour shift, the nurse's aide has to wake up, bathe,

         12  clothe, and transport the residents to the day room,

         13  where they can eat their breakfast, all in a very

         14  short period of time.  They are responsible for all

         15  of the personal care needs of these residents on a

         16  seven and a half or eight- hour shift.  There is no

         17  time for a nurse's aide to communicate with, listen

         18  to the stories of or take care of the more

         19  fundamental needs of a human being who is living in

         20  a nursing facility.  I heard Cynthia say earlier

         21  that the problem is that the care that is being

         22  provided in most of the nursing homes is

         23  institutionalized care, and yet, we call them

         24  nursing homes.  It is really time that we recognize

         25  that, and I think that what is really important for
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          2  elected leaders to do, in addition to seeking to get

          3  past the staffing legislation that we worked on for

          4  over five years, 1199, the Nursing Home Community

          5  Coalition, Geoff Lieberman, Jean Murphy and a whole

          6  bunch of other folks including NYSNA, were in a room

          7  for a couple of years to come up with

          8  recommendations for legislation.  And then we worked

          9  very close with Assemblyman Gottfried in drafting

         10  the legislation.  We support that legislation, we

         11  think it is a long time in the works, and it is time

         12  to get that legislation past.  And that will be a

         13  first step towards dealing with the problem.

         14                 Secondly, as the folks mentioned

         15  before, the training of nurse's aides, and all

         16  workers in nursing homes needs to be improved, the

         17  number of hours of training has to be improved.

         18  There are many social needs that the residents have,

         19  that are not being met, because there is not enough

         20  time and not enough training.

         21                 My father passed away a couple of

         22  years ago, and in the last six or eight months of

         23  his life, he was taken care of by a wonderful recent

         24  immigrant from Haiti, and I watched how she

         25  struggled to take care of him.  And she was there a
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          2  whole day, to get him up in the morning, to bathe

          3  him, to feed him, to take care of all of his

          4  personal needs.  And part of the problem and part of

          5  the underlying fear that my father had, and that she

          6  had, was that there were cultural barriers and

          7  language barriers.  And I think that this is very

          8  true of our nursing homes in New York City,

          9  particularly, where New York City being the melting

         10  pot that it is, you have people from the Caribbean,

         11  from Asia, from Europe, taking care of people from

         12  Central America and Africa, and the United States,

         13  and there is no time to even teach people how to

         14  understand other people's cultures, yet, you know,

         15  to say nothing of how to communicate with them if

         16  you do not speak the same language.  And at the same

         17  time, we only require 75 hours of training of

         18  nurse's aides to take care of the residents, and

         19  then there is not enough time, because we are so

         20  short staffed.

         21                 It is going to take tremendous

         22  leadership on the part of our elected leaders,

         23  including, I hope, you folks here in this room to

         24  speak out on behalf of the elderly and the disabled

         25  who are living in nursing homes, and bring this to
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          2  the public's attention.  There are long- term

          3  funding problems, there is not just enough money

          4  flowing through the institutions to hire sufficient

          5  staff to take care of the residents.  There is a

          6  crisis, as Cynthia Rudder said in the beginning of

          7  her testimony, in long- term care institutions in

          8  the State of New York.  Even though we do provide

          9  good care, there is a real crisis.

         10                 While in New York City, because our

         11  unions market share or density, we represent over 95

         12  percent of the nursing home workers in New York

         13  City, we have been able to raise wages and health

         14  care insurance and pensions and education and

         15  training of workers around New York State.  The

         16  average nursing home worker around Albany makes

         17  $6.50 an hour, has no health insurance and no

         18  pension, and there is no program run by any labor

         19  union that is effectively training nursing home

         20  workers in the Albany area.  The turnover of nursing

         21  home workers in nursing homes all over Upstate New

         22  York is over 200 percent.

         23                 Now if that is the case, how can

         24  those workers provide and the institutions provide

         25  continuity of care to the residents who are living
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          2  in the nursing homes?

          3                 So I want to conclude by saying that

          4  we support your Resolution 223, asking the

          5  legislature to pay us the staffing bill as well as

          6  your resolutions on improving training.

          7                 I would like to make a couple of

          8  remarks, specifically relating to criminal

          9  background checks and fingerprinting.  We believe

         10  that, first of all, if such legislation is passed

         11  that the health care workers, health care providers

         12  should be specifically prohibited from requiring the

         13  applicants to pay for their own criminal background

         14  checks.

         15                 Secondly, we believe very strongly

         16  that there must be due process to protect the

         17  workers who are wrongly accused of having a criminal

         18  record.

         19                 Thirdly, that these background checks

         20  should be processed in a timely manner.  In other

         21  states where they have required criminal background

         22  checks, some folks are put on probation for six

         23  months, until, you know, information is brought to

         24  the service, and in many of those states there are

         25  not criminal background, there are no due process
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          2  rights.

          3                 The definition of the crimes should

          4  take into account the severity and relevance of the

          5  crime in the length of time that has elapsed since

          6  the crime was committed.

          7                 And lastly, criminal background

          8  checks should be applied to new applicants only and

          9  not currently employed workers who have satisfactory

         10  work records.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  So you, 1199 is in

         12  support of the legislation with those

         13  specifications?

         14                 MR. SACKMAN:  That is right.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  One of those

         16  specifications means that the future employee or the

         17  employee should not pay for the background check.

         18                 MR. SACKMAN:  That is correct.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  The second one

         20  that they should take into consideration the crime,

         21  you know, how big the crime was.

         22                 Okay, and the third was?

         23                 MR. SACKMAN:  Of due process, a

         24  hearing of an opportunity to present your side of

         25  the story.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  And the fourth one

          3  you said that background checks should only be done

          4  to future employees, not the ones that have already

          5  been hired.

          6                 MR. SACKMAN:  Yes, I think that what

          7  one needs to look at is that the average age of a

          8  nursing home worker in New York City is 46 years of

          9  age, and their average length of service is 11

         10  years.  I think that the average worker has

         11  demonstrated in the quality of care that is being

         12  provided to the residents that they are good

         13  workers, good, reliable and caring workers who are

         14  doing God's work in the nursing homes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  So you are opposed

         16  of having the current employees going through a

         17  background check?

         18                 MR. SACKMAN:  I think if they have

         19  demonstrated over a period of time that they are

         20  reliable and caring workers, they should not have to

         21  go through criminal background checks, that is

         22  correct.

         23                 So then the legislation should say

         24  that it is for future employees.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Let me, before I
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          2  became a City Councilman, we created program for

          3  senior citizens, three, four senior centers and

          4  Pride for Seniors, and a whole month in the program.

          5    So we employ over 1,000 workers and home

          6  attendants who are utilized with your union.  So it

          7  is very important for me to understand what you are

          8  saying here, because, yet, we have good workers.

          9  And I can attest myself to them.  But why, if they

         10  are such good worker, why a good worker, an

         11  employee, who has been doing a fantastic job, why

         12  would they object to a background check?

         13                 MR. SACKMAN:  I think, you know, I

         14  was looking at statistics recently, I do not have

         15  the statistics on New York City. We represent

         16  nursing home workers in the State of Florida, and in

         17  Dade County, 40 percent of the African- American

         18  males have criminal backgrounds, 40 percent of the

         19  African- American males have criminal backgrounds.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  No, no, no.  If

         21  you go around, I hope I do not offend anyone.  But I

         22  am an Hispanic descendent, I am Puerto Rican, and

         23  you go to our communities, especially if you go to

         24  our community you will find that a great number of

         25  people have criminal background or something, one or
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          2  another incident with the law.  That does not mean

          3  that they should be stopped from getting a job.  We

          4  are here to open doors and to be sure that people

          5  get a second chance, and that people get the proper

          6  help so they can become part of the society.

          7                 So we are not here and this Committee

          8  is not here to stop people from getting jobs or from

          9  getting a second opportunity. It is important what

         10  you said about how big or what kind of a crime.

         11                 MR. SACKMAN:  Right.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  I am in favor of

         13  that to be sure that the people are not stopped from

         14  getting a job if the crime does not call for it.

         15  Because, yes, we have violated sometime the law,

         16  that does not mean that we should be stopped from

         17  getting a decent job.  And again, some have to go

         18  back into society.  So in that sense, I am agreeing

         19  with you.

         20                 What I do not support is not to put

         21  the current employees to a background check, even

         22  though they are good workers, and they are beautiful

         23  workers.  I think that we, people in the business,

         24  the organization, the Board of Director or the

         25  organization, that they would be liable to a lawsuit
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          2  for whatever happened whatever they do, they should

          3  know, even though I am a good, I have been doing

          4  good work for so many years, but they should know

          5  that I have this past.  Why not, there is nothing

          6  wrong with that?

          7                 MR. SACKMAN:  Well, we just have a

          8  different point of view on that.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Okay.  Council

         10  Member Nelson.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Just a quick

         12  question, a point of clarification, actually.  You

         13  were speaking about, I do not know if it was just

         14  Upstate nursing homes, maybe it was the entire

         15  state.  But you said 200 percent turnover?

         16                 MR. SACKMAN:  In some areas in

         17  Upstate New York the turnover is 200 percent.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  In the course

         19  of one year -

         20                 MR. SACKMAN:  In the course of one

         21  year.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: - -  200

         23  percent.

         24                 MR. SACKMAN:  There are some people

         25  who remain, but the turnover of the rest of the
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          2  workforce, it is, it adds up to 200 percent turnover

          3  of the workforce.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  That is

          5  twice, a full turnover twice in one year.

          6                 MR. SACKMAN:  Right.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Okay, I just

          8  wanted to make sure I heard correctly.

          9                 MR. SACKMAN:  Because they can get

         10  better jobs at K Mart.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Yes.

         12                 MR. SACKMAN:  Better paying jobs with

         13  better benefits.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Thank you.

         15  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         16                 MR. SACKMAN:  An LPN's salary, just

         17  to give you, you know, we were talking about nurses

         18  before.  In Buffalo, which once was a union town

         19  that did great by unionized workers, LPN's make

         20  $7.50 an hour.  Why would anybody want to work as an

         21  LPN in Buffalo?

         22                 See this is part of the problem, and

         23  a lot of the stories that were told earlier by the

         24  Assistant Attorney General are stories that came up

         25  Upstate New York in Oneida County and other places

                                                            76

          1  COMMITTEE ON AGING

          2  Upstate New York, where it is very difficult to hire

          3  and retain qualified workers to work and caring

          4  workers to work in the institutions.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  I would like to

          6  stop for one minute to recognize that we have been

          7  joined by a group of visitors from the Jewish

          8  Community Council of Crown Heights.  Shall we give

          9  them a hand?  Welcome to New York City Council.

         10                 Oh, wait, wait, you have a question.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  I have a

         12  question that seems not to be answered by any of the

         13  speakers so far.  Most of the funding for nursing

         14  homes from Medicare or Medicaid, or you know,

         15  Medicaid oriented HMOs, which is basically, I feel

         16  the economics that determines the staffing, and the

         17  staffing then determines the level and quality of

         18  care.  But no one has been addressing the fact that

         19  there is a problem getting paid from Medicaid

         20  patients and Medicare patients.  How do we mandate

         21  staffing without addressing the funding source, the

         22  amount of money nursing homes make?  Because I feel

         23  that sometime there might be some who are fighting

         24  hard to keep a balance.  And if we mandate the

         25  staff, it means that we should look at the funding
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          2  so that it does not effect the quality of care.

          3                 Could you address that, please?

          4                 MR. SACKMAN:  In New York City, I

          5  think the average number of Medicaid beds is about

          6  80 percent, of the beds in the nursing homes is

          7  about 80 percent.  Some homes have more Medicare or

          8  more Subacute Care than others, but I believe that

          9  the average is about 80 percent of the funding for

         10  the care of the residents in the nursing homes is

         11  from the State Budget, from Medicaid.  And the

         12  system that reimburses nursing home care in New York

         13  was enacted, I think, in 1986.  Somebody might want

         14  to take a look at it now, because it does not deal

         15  with improving staffing.  There is no incentive to a

         16  nursing home operator who wants to increase staff

         17  and improve the quality of care, because there is no

         18  way for him to apply for additional funding so that

         19  he can do so.

         20                 There are some, in fact most, nursing

         21  home operators in New York who would just love to

         22  hire more staff and pay better wages and benefits,

         23  and spend more time and resources on training of

         24  nursing home workers, but they just do not have the

         25  money or the flexibility to improvise and try
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          2  different models of care, because of state

          3  regulations and limited funding.

          4                 So something needs to be, you know,

          5  it needs to be addressed in the State Legislature,

          6  and it also needs to be addressed in the federal

          7  government on Medicaid reimbursement.

          8                 MR. CAMPANELLA:  Can I pass these

          9  out?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Can we do it,

         11  okay, let's move on.

         12                 MR. CAMPANELLA:  Good morning.  We

         13  wish to thank the members of the New York City

         14  Council Committee on Aging for the opportunity to

         15  testify before you.  My name is Joseph Campanella

         16  and I am the Executive Director of the Home Care

         17  Council of New York City.  To my left is Mr.

         18  Christopher Olechowski, the newly elected President

         19  of the Council.

         20                 The Home Care Council is comprised of

         21  60 home attendant agencies that deliver personal

         22  care services to over 65,000 Medicaid eligible New

         23  Yorkers in five boroughs.  Our agencies also employ

         24  almost 70,000 home care workers annually, sometimes

         25  known as the home attendant programs, HCC and its
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          2  members are committed to providing the highest

          3  quality care to the elderly and disabled individuals

          4  in need of personal care services in the least

          5  restrictive environment.

          6                 HCC supports efforts to strengthen

          7  security measures that help ensure that clients and

          8  patients receiving home care services are safe and

          9  not at risk of potential harm or other criminal

         10  activity from our employees who provide direct care

         11  services.  To this end, HCC member agencies check

         12  prospective employees for past criminal behavior to

         13  an employment registry system that was developed by

         14  the Council's agencies that has been operating for

         15  the past 14 years.  Please note, it is 14 years,

         16  there is a typo in the testimony that I submitted.

         17  We found this system to be successful.

         18                 The HCC registry works as follows:

         19                 The majority of the Council's

         20  agencies utilize the same computer service company.

         21  Part of the service is to maintain an employment

         22  history on each worker that is employed by our

         23  agencies.

         24                 The process is simple; the hiring

         25  agency inputs the perspective employee social
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          2  security number to access his/her employment record

          3  from the computer company's database.  The employer

          4  listing is used by the hiring agency to verify past

          5  employment and view history and length of

          6  employment.  These items are valuable indicators in

          7  the hiring process of an individual.

          8                 HCC would welcome a more

          9  comprehensive system of performing criminal

         10  background checks of home care and personal care

         11  workers, with the understanding that the following

         12  standards are met:

         13                 The system must include all workers

         14  who have direct contact with patients or clients.

         15  HCC cannot support a system that selects certain

         16  workers to be checked for past criminal activity,

         17  but neglects to select all direct care workers.  Any

         18  system for criminal background checks should be

         19  equitable, including all workers who have direct

         20  contact with patients or clients, notwithstanding

         21  their training or licensure status.

         22                 The system should be logistically

         23  simple. Information generated by criminal justice

         24  background checks should be obtained in an efficient

         25  and timely manner.  There cannot be long periods of
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          2  delay or uncertainty regarding a background check,

          3  and there cannot be a complicated, confusing

          4  application and approval process.  Such bureaucratic

          5  measures would make the recruitment and retention of

          6  workers difficult in a competitive employment

          7  environment where worker shortages are not uncommon.

          8  Lawmakers must understand that delays in filling

          9  home care workers positions translate into clients

         10  unable to receive desperately needed services.

         11                 The system must be affordable.  There

         12  are over 100,000 workers in New York City who are

         13  likely to be affected by requirements to perform

         14  formal criminal background checks. Fingerprinting

         15  and processing of information will add substantial

         16  costs to the system, placing an additional burden on

         17  the Medicaid expenditures.  One consideration might

         18  be to implement a statewide system, arguing that

         19  these are basic public safety and protection

         20  measures requiring the State to pick up the local

         21  Medicaid share for the background checks.

         22                 Providers should be protected from

         23  liability.  No provider acting in good faith on

         24  information generated as a result of a criminal

         25  background check should be libel for denial of
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          2  employment based onto he information provided.

          3  Providers should be protected from discrimination in

          4  employment suits that will likely be filed.

          5  Similarly, applicants and workers need to have

          6  access to the appropriate appeals mechanisms if they

          7  are wrongfully denied employment or terminated based

          8  on past background information.

          9                 Finally, the Council must be aware

         10  that in reality, home care and personal care workers

         11  are often newly arrived foreign nationals recently

         12  joining the workforce here in New York.  They are

         13  comfortable working in communities where there are

         14  others of similar ethnic and native language

         15  backgrounds.  They make excellent workers.  However,

         16  the prospect of fingerprinting and criminal

         17  background checks will have a chilling affect, and

         18  will likely steering some of these individuals away

         19  from employment in the home care industry, thereby

         20  substantially shrinking the pool of potential

         21  workers from which our industry traditionally draws.

         22    This will make it more difficult for providers to

         23  recruitment health care workers in an industry

         24  already plagued by worker shortages.

         25                 The Council will need to balance the
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          2  need for enhanced security and protection for

          3  clients against the competing need to recruitment

          4  and select a competent and caring workforce to

          5  deliver services to the frail elderly and disabled

          6  population.

          7                 Thank you again for the opportunity

          8  to address this issue.  We will try to respond to

          9  any questions or concerns that you may have.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Yes, Mr.

         11  Campanella, could you please, I am going to ask you

         12  to read again the last paragraph in the first page,

         13  the system?

         14                 MR. CAMPANELLA:  The first paragraph

         15  on the first page?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  No, the last

         17  paragraph.

         18                 MR. CAMPANELLA:  The last paragraph.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  It starts with

         20   "The system."

         21                 MR. CAMPANELLA:  I should have

         22  paginated these pages.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Thank you.

         24                 MR. CAMPANELLA:  The system should be

         25  logistically sound - -
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  No, no, that is

          3  not the one.

          4                 MR. CAMPANELLA:  The system must be

          5  affordable.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  No, the system

          7  must include.

          8                 MR. CAMPANELLA:  Okay, the system

          9  must include all workers who have direct contact

         10  with patients or clients, everybody.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Go ahead.

         12                 MR. CAMPANELLA:  HCC cannot support a

         13  system that selects certain workers to be checked

         14  for past criminal activity, but neglects to select

         15  all direct care workers.  Any system for criminal

         16  background checks should be equitable, including all

         17  workers who have direct contact with patient and

         18  clients, notwithstanding their training or licensure

         19  status.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Okay.  Now I am

         21  going to ask you to read the paragraph that says,

         22  finally.

         23                 MR. CAMPANELLA:  Finally, the Council

         24  must be aware that in reality, home care and

         25  personal care workers are often newly arrived
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          2  foreign nationals recently joining the workforce

          3  here in New York.  They are comfortable working in

          4  communities where there are others of similar ethnic

          5  and native language backgrounds. They make excellent

          6  workers.  However, the prospect of fingerprinting

          7  and criminal background checks will have a chilling

          8  affect, and will likely steer some of these

          9  individuals away from employment to the home care

         10  industry, thereby substantially shrinking the pool

         11  of potential workers from which our industry

         12  traditionally draws.  This will make it more

         13  difficult for providers to recruitment health care

         14  workers in an industry already plagued by worker

         15  shortages.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Could you explain

         17  to me the difference between the two paragraphs.

         18                 MR. CAMPANELLA:  Yes, in one of them

         19  we are addressing that we would like to see

         20  everyone, if there is going to be a piece of

         21  legislation, everybody, anybody who has contact with

         22  the public who are our clients, must be going

         23  through a criminal background check.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  And the last

         25  paragraph, saying no, we should not do it.
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          2                 MR. CAMPANELLA:  The last paragraph -

          3   -  What?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  You are confusing

          5  me.

          6                 MR. CAMPANELLA:  Okay.  I guess what

          7  I am trying to say - -

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  You are confusing

          9  me, are you in or out?

         10                 MR. CAMPANELLA:  Oh no, we fully

         11  support it with these caveats, okay?  But what I am

         12  saying, let me just explain it.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Okay, please do.

         14                 MR. CAMPANELLA:  When we are talking

         15  about our personal care workers and our home health

         16  aides that we hire, these are entry level positions.

         17    Okay, and it is just sort of a note to say, and by

         18  the way, if you are going to do fingerprint checks

         19  and if you are going to do criminal background check

         20  you might have a pool of people that are terribly

         21  afraid to apply  because you are going to do this.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  But on the other

         23  hand you are saying everyone should be checked.

         24                 MR. CAMPANELLA:  Yes, yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  But then you are
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          2  saying, but watch out - -

          3                 MR. CAMPANELLA:  No, I am not saying

          4  watch out, I am saying is, you know, I think when

          5  you are going to do some kind of a background check,

          6  I think you are going to have to do it for

          7  everybody, okay, anybody that has contact with

          8  clients.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Okay.

         10                 MR. CAMPANELLA:  The other piece of

         11  it is, I just wanted you to be aware, okay, I am not

         12  making any kind of a judgement or anything, I am

         13  just saying that you need to be aware that if we do

         14  a piece of legislation like this, okay, there might

         15  be some problems ahead.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  There are always

         17  problems in life, you know, life is full of

         18  problems.

         19                 MR. CAMPANELLA:  Oh, I know that.  I

         20  am just, I figured I would bring it up.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ;  But the main

         22  reason why we are here, and our main purpose is to

         23  protect senior citizens.

         24                 MR. CAMPANELLA:  Okay.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  At all costs.
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          2                 MR. CAMPANELLA:  Yes, I agree with

          3  you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  That is the main

          5  reason, protect seniors at all costs.

          6                 MR. CAMPANELLA:  I agree with you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  That is the focus

          8  here.  We cannot, you know, I want to be able to, I

          9  will offend a lot of people saying, well, if I say,

         10  well let's fingerprint them.  They will say why are

         11  you doing that, you are against our community, you

         12  are against our poor, you are against the minority.

         13                 MR. CAMPANELLA:  But I am not against

         14  that.  What I am saying is I think it is something

         15  that we need to be aware of.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Thank you.

         17  Anybody has a question?  So we can move on.

         18                 Thank you, thank you, all three of

         19  you.

         20                 MR. OLECHOWSKI:  Can I just say one

         21  thing.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  He has spoken for

         23  you.

         24                 MR. OLECHOWSKI:  Yes, I just want to

         25  echo for a second - -
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Okay.

          3                 MR. OLECHOWSKI: - -  what Mr.

          4  Campanella said and Mr. Sackman said.  I know the

          5  concerns of the Committee are that, you know, we do

          6  this right and that the fingerprinting and the

          7  criminal background checks are done equitably, and

          8  we are in full support of that.

          9                 I think what Mr. Campanella and Home

         10  Care Council, and I think all of us want to look at

         11  is that there is a balanced approach to the process

         12  of going forward with this so that our workforce is

         13  maintained in a stable manner.

         14                 For instance, in the home care

         15  industry, and I can only speak for the home

         16  attendant workers.  A threshold of a ratio of about

         17  one, one and a half home attendants to a client is a

         18  good threshold to maintain to stable workforce.

         19  What our concern is that in some way we continue to

         20  maintain that stable workforce without jeopardizing

         21  because of an implementation of a system that could,

         22  you know, for whatever reason cause fear for people

         23  to want to participate in this system.  Coupled with

         24  the fact of what Mr. Sackman said, that, you know,

         25  this is a highly still underpaid area for many of
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          2  the workers, that we do not find ourselves in the

          3  position that instead of, as you put it, we want to

          4  help all the seniors to give quality care, that we

          5  do not end up doing the opposite.  That is all we

          6  really wanted to say.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  I want you to know

          8  that you are going to work, see I have recommended

          9  people to work as caretakers in the New York City

         10  Housing Authority, meaning to sweep, to clean all

         11  the dirt that people put on all the you know what,

         12  people do in the hallways.  And to do that, to do

         13  caretakers job they have to be fingerprinted.

         14  Teachers have to be fingerprinted.  You know, many,

         15  many agencies in the City of New York are

         16  fingerprinting people and checking background.  So I

         17  do not see anything wrong, and I understand that

         18  that confuses people and people are going to be

         19  afraid.  But, however, senior citizens' security and

         20  safety and concern are here higher than anything

         21  else.

         22                 So I appreciate the three of you.

         23                 MR. CAMPANELLA:  Thank you very much.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  By the way, you

         25  are not opposing the - -
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          2                 MR. OLECHOWSKI:  No.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  You are in favor

          4  of the resolution, right?

          5                 MR. OLECHOWSKI:  Yes.

          6                 MR. CAMPANELLA:  Let me, I just want

          7  to add one thing.  You know, I said before, we have

          8  a registry system within the Council.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Okay.

         10                 MR. CAMPANELLA:  It is basically done

         11  unemployment.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  We are a member of

         13  your Council.

         14                 MR. CAMPANELLA:  I know you are.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Thank you.  Our

         16  last three witnesses, the last three are Jacqueline

         17  Case, Lili Fable, and Carlos Manzano, the three of

         18  you come forward, and with these three will end our

         19  hearing today.  And then we will take a vote, and I

         20  will ask the members who left to please come back.

         21  Where are the three?  Only one.  What is your name?

         22                 MS. CASE:  Jacqueline Case.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Where is Lili?

         24  Lili left.  Where is Carlos Manzano?  He left.  You

         25  only, you are the last one. Thank you very much.
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          2                 MS. CASE:  I guess I will say good

          3  afternoon, not good morning, I think.  We are on the

          4  cusp of morning and afternoon.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  And I want you to

          6  end your testimony before afternoon.

          7                 MS. CASE:  Okay, okay.  My name is

          8  Jacqueline Case. I am the Director of the New York

          9  City Long- Term Care Ombudsman Program.  The

         10  Ombudsman Program is the federally mandated advocacy

         11  program for residents in long- term care facilities.

         12    That is nursing homes and also adult homes.  One

         13  purpose of the program is to recruit, train, and

         14  certify ombudsman volunteers to go into their

         15  neighborhood facilities on a weekly basis to help

         16  protect the rights and improve the quality of life

         17  of nursing home residents. Those two things are the

         18  mandate of the program.  It is one way to open the

         19  doors of nursing homes to let the community in.

         20                 The Ombudsman Program is different

         21  from other advocacy groups because we have what is

         22  called mandated access. That means that facilities

         23  cannot choose to not cooperate with us we do

         24  complaint investigation, nor can facilities say they

         25  do not want to have a regular ombudsman at their
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          2  facility on a weekly basis.

          3                 We have volunteer ombudsman in

          4  approximately one third of the nursing and adult

          5  homes in New York City.  Long- term care ombudsman

          6  staff respond to all other complaints and give

          7  support to the volunteer ombudsman.  Therefore, all

          8  nursing home and adult home residents have access to

          9  an Ombudsman.

         10                 One of the obligations of the

         11  Ombudsman Program is to document the various

         12  complaints that the ombudsman receive and observe.

         13  Because of that mandate, I am able to talk about

         14  different areas of care that have been reported as

         15  problematic.  If there are problems with resident

         16  care, it's usually because there is not enough staff

         17  to do something.

         18                 The responsibility that nursing homes

         19  agree to when they become Medicare/Medicaid

         20  certified is to see that every resident achieves and

         21  maintains her highest practicable level of

         22  functioning.  That is the definition in the

         23  Ombudsman, in the, excuse me, in the Omnibus

         24  Reconciliation Act of 1987.  Someone is in her

         25  nursing home because they need assistance in their
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          2  activities of daily living, the everyday things that

          3  you and I do, probably without thinking, eating,

          4  dressing, washing toileting, walking, et cetera.

          5  All these activities are potentially time consuming

          6  if one needs assistance.  Therefore, a facility

          7  needs an adequate number of Certified Nursing

          8  Assistants to assist the residents in these

          9  activities.

         10                 The number of hours per day of

         11  assistance by staff of any type that is given to a

         12  resident in a nursing home, comes, is documented as

         13  less than two hours in a 24- hour period.  Frankly,

         14  I do not know if I can do all the tasks for myself

         15  in less than two hours a day.  How can this be

         16  acceptable for a frail, elderly person?

         17                 I picked a random time period to do a

         18  rough statistical analysis of complaints received

         19  and logged into our data collection system by us.

         20  And I have to say this is not all the complaints

         21  yet, they have not all been logged.  But from what

         22  has been logged between April 1st, 2002 and August

         23  31st, 2002, that is the time period I selected the

         24  complaint categories that could fit into problems

         25  with staff shortages.  Approximately 75 percent of
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          2  the total documented complaints involve resident

          3  care.  To date, 452 complaints have been logged.  If

          4  we take just complaints about resident care alone,

          5  there are 123, if we look at dignity, autonomy,

          6  choice, we add another 82.  Restraints, staffing,

          7  rehab add another 73 complaints, and discharge adds

          8  57 complaints.  And you will see attached to this

          9  testimony a sample of the printout, so that you can

         10  see how I get these numbers.  They were not just

         11  pulled out of a hatchet.

         12                 What do all these numbers mean?  When

         13  you are in a nursing home you are dependent on

         14  others for your day- to- day, hour to- hour, and

         15  even minute- to- minute care.  Think about sitting

         16  in a wet and/or soiled diaper for any length of time

         17  let alone hours. Unfortunately, it is not unusual to

         18  hear that residents have been told to make in their

         19  diapers rather than be taken to the bathroom. It is

         20  not unusual to hear that the dirty diaper will be

         21  changed on the next shift.  And it is standard

         22  practice for anyone entering a nursing home to be

         23  automatically put into a diaper.

         24                 No part of this automatic practice is

         25  good medical care.  It takes time to change a diaper
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          2  that is being worn by an adult.  You cannot just

          3  plop them on a changing table like a baby. Probably

          4  they will need to be transferred to bed from

          5  wheelchair, undressed, cleaned, redressed, and

          6  transferred back to the wheelchair.  It is not going

          7  to happen in 10 minutes.  And if you came into the

          8  facility continent, you will probably become

          9  incontinent because of the practice of putting

         10  people into diapers as a first course of action.  It

         11  actually takes less time to put someone on a toilet

         12  than to go through the whole process of changing a

         13  diaper.  But it also takes less time if the resident

         14  has to wait tell the next shift to get the diaper

         15  changed.

         16                 The three biggest area of complaint

         17  in resident care are accidents and improper

         18  handling, failure to follow care plan or physicians

         19  order, and symptoms unattended or not noticed.

         20  Residents, family members and many advocates believe

         21  that one of the main reasons for these complaints is

         22  a lack of an adequate number of people to do the

         23  hands- on care.

         24                 For example, when there is not enough

         25  staff to feed and toilet residents, you will have
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          2  weight loss and decubiti, or bed sores.  There is

          3  not proper oversight of the day- to- day care of the

          4  resident.  Nor is there a review of the progress or

          5  lack of progress in the resident's condition or what

          6  the care staff is actually doing.  You need adequate

          7  supervisory staff to do this and you need adequate

          8  care staff to do the care.

          9                 When symptoms are left unattended or

         10  there is no notice of a change in condition, to me

         11  that means that there is not enough staff around to

         12  do more than the old bed and body work that was so

         13  deplored in the seventies.

         14                 The training issues of adequate

         15  training and adequate supervision go hand in hand

         16  with staffing issues.  Nursing homes are communities

         17  in miniature.  They are made up of hundreds of

         18  people, all with different backgrounds, needs,

         19  frailties, abilities and disabilities.  Currently

         20  each certified nursing assistant must complete and

         21  pass a 100- hour training course of study.

         22  Everything to prepare you to work on a residential

         23  floor is crammed into this curriculum from life

         24  skills needed by the nursing assistant like how to

         25  get to work on time, how to dress properly, how to
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          2  call in if you are going to be absent in a timely

          3  manner, to residents rights, interpersonal

          4  relationships, fire prevention and safety, basic

          5  needs of a resident, health restoration and

          6  maintenance of a resident, and it goes on and on.  I

          7  do not have to repeat this it is written, you can

          8  read what someone who is coming to be a certified

          9  nursing assistant must learn before they go onto a

         10  floor.

         11                 I go back to the number of complaints

         12  in resident care that I mentioned before.  Those 123

         13  complaints were lodged because the caregiver either

         14  did not how to adequately provide the care, or they

         15  did not have sufficient time to provide the care.

         16  One shows a need for more training, the other shows

         17  a need for more staff.

         18                 Residents and families have learned

         19  to accept a lower level of performance from staff

         20  because they see how much work the certified nursing

         21  assistant has to do, because of the number of

         22  residents that aide has to care for.

         23                 Unfortunately, what you see is a

         24  pyramid effect, not enough care staff leads to less

         25  time to complete basic requirements of care, leads
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          2  to an acceptance of a lower expectation level, which

          3  leads to less observation of changes in conditions,

          4  which leads to the facility not fulfilling its

          5  mandate, to see that every resident achieves and

          6  maintains her highest practicable level of

          7  functioning.

          8                 Obviously, we are not going to solve

          9  the staffing problem this afternoon or this morning.

         10    We are probably not going to even mitigate the

         11  problem until all of us get into regulations that

         12  there needs to be a minimum staffing level for

         13  caregivers in nursing homes, and those caregivers

         14  need and should be provided with greater training

         15  before they take on the difficult task of caring for

         16  the elderly.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Thank you.  So you

         19  are supporting the resolution.

         20                 MS. CASE:  I support the resolution

         21  100 percent.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Thank you, thank

         23  you.  We are about to take a vote.  Let me call the

         24  name, again, who is here. Domenic Recchia, here?

         25  Yes.  Helen Foster, Kendall Stewart, Michael Nelson,
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          2  Dennis Gallagher, Eric Dilan.  Erik Dilan was here,

          3  can you call him here, please.  And Dennis

          4  Gallagher, okay, he left his vote before he left.

          5  So here we go.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Diaz.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER DIAZ:  Aye on all, and

          8  I would like to express my admiration and

          9  appreciation to Councilwoman Helen Foster for

         10  introducing Resolution No. 223.  And again, it is a

         11  pleasure and honor to work with member of the

         12  Council like that. And also, I would like to commend

         13  and express my admiration and respect to Council

         14  Member Nelson for introducing Resolution No. 360 and

         15  361.  Thank you.  I vote yes on all.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Nelson.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Yes on all,

         18  and I congratulate the Chairman for allowing this to

         19  come to the fore, and for being so supportive of it.

         20    Thank you.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Dilan.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN:  Aye on all.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Foster.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER:  Yes, on all.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Recchia.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  Aye on all.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Stewart.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  I vote yes

          5  on all.  And I would like to ask the Chair to at

          6  least convene a hearing on the reimbursement for

          7  such nursing homes, because I believe that the

          8  reimbursement is part of the problem.  And unless we

          9  address that problem, we will not be able to take

         10  care of the staffing problem. Yes, on all.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK:  By a final vote of 7

         12  in the affirmative, 0 in the negative, and no

         13  abstentions, the items are adopted.  Please sign the

         14  Committee reports.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Thank you.  I

         16  would like to also recognize the participation at

         17  this hearing of the Counsel of the Committee, Ms.

         18  Cheree Buggs and the Council Senior Staff Member,

         19  Mr. Christopher Ling.  Ladies and gentlemen, this

         20  meeting is adjourned.

         21                 (Hearing adjourned at 12:10 p.m.)

         22                 (The following testimony was read

         23  into the record.)

         24

         25  Testimony of:
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          2  Jay Sackman

          3  Executive Vice- President

          4  1199 New York Health and Human Service Union

          5

          6                 Thank you for this opportunity to

          7  testify on these important resolutions relating to

          8  improving the provision of long term care services

          9  in New York State.

         10                 I am Jay Sackman, Executive Vice-

         11  President of 1199 New York Health and Human Service

         12  Union.

         13                 As you probably know SEIU is New York

         14  State's largest health care union representing over

         15  215,000 workers in hospitals, nursing homes, home

         16  care agencies, clinics and other health care related

         17  settings.  The resolution you are considering today

         18  could have a profound effect on workers we represent

         19  and more importantly the patients that we serve.

         20                 I would first like to discuss

         21  Resolution No. 223 calling on the State Legislature

         22  to enact legislation to regulate staffing and

         23  training standards in nursing homes.

         24                 SEIU led the fight for the passage of

         25  legislation to establish, in State statute, staffing
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          2  ratios for registered nurses, licensed nurses and

          3  nursing home aides.  Why has SEIU fought so hard to

          4  establish staffing standards?  As your resolution

          5  notes, the federal government has already conducted

          6  exhaustive studies, as have other organizations,

          7  which clearly show that most of the country's

          8  nursing homes are understaffed and that New York

          9  State was no exception.  Creating staffing ratios in

         10  statute is one of the most straightforward and

         11  effective ways of addressing chronic staffing

         12  shortages if the ratios are truly related to the

         13  number of staff needed to properly care for the

         14  residents.  And that is exactly what A.4171- A would

         15  do.

         16                 This legislation was drafted with a

         17  great deal of input from a broad coalition with

         18  expertise in caring for the elderly, and the

         19  staffing ratios that would be established by this

         20  bill are the consensus of this group of the amount

         21  of staff needed to provide quality care.

         22                 Establishing staffing ratios that are

         23  actually related to the staff needed to provide

         24  quality care will have three important effects:

         25                 1.  Care will be improved.  Proper
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          2  staffing, achieved through the creation of staffing

          3  ratios, means staff will have time necessary to

          4  feed, bathe, transfer and care for the residents.

          5  Improved staffing levels can also play an important

          6  role in keeping residents engaged in activities at

          7  the nursing home.  Proper staffing levels allow

          8  staff the time they need to engage residents in the

          9  activities of the facility.  Every day, most of the

         10  nursing home workers in New York State are

         11  confronted with the nearly impossible task of

         12  providing the highest quality care without the

         13  workers necessary to achieve this goal.

         14                 2.  Improvement of recruitment and

         15  retention. Proper staffing of a nursing home will

         16  reduce the number of occupational injuries, lower

         17  overtime requirements and allow staff the time they

         18  need to truly care for the residents.  All of these

         19  factors are important components in creating a

         20  positive work environment.  Inadequate staffing can

         21  create a vicious cycle while working conditions

         22  deteriorate, making recruitment and retention of

         23  qualified workers more difficult, further eroding

         24  the working conditions at the facility and adversely

         25  effecting the quality of care being delivered.
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          2                 3.  Improved enforcement.  The

          3  current standard of requiring sufficient staff is

          4  almost impossible for State surveyor to judge.

          5  Creating clear staffing ratios gives surveyors a

          6  clear standard by which to judge a nursing home's

          7  staffing levels and it gives a nursing home a clear

          8  standard that it has to maintain.

          9                 Creating a statutory staffing level

         10  will not solve all of the staffing issues in nursing

         11  homes, but it would be an important step in creating

         12  a better environment for the care of the State's

         13  elderly and disabled nursing home residents.

         14                 As Resolution 223 notes, training is

         15  also an important component in resident care.  SEIU

         16  supports increased training for nurse aides.  Nurse

         17  aides provide most of the front line care to

         18  residents of nursing homes.  As nursing homes deal

         19  with the health care needs of a more complex

         20  population, the nurse aides training must keep pace

         21  with both resident needs and new treatment

         22  protocols.

         23                 Next I would like to comment on the

         24  other two resolutions, 360 and 361, which relate to

         25  the fingerprinting of certain health care workers
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          2  for the purpose of conducting criminal background

          3  checks.

          4                 Each year, there are a number of

          5  bills introduced in the State Legislature dealing

          6  with criminal background checks for health care

          7  workers so rather than comment on either of the two

          8  pieces of legislation mentioned in the resolutions I

          9  would like to simply state SEIU's position relating

         10  to fingerprinting and criminal background checks.

         11                 SEIU does not oppose proposals to

         12  institute criminal background checks for nursing

         13  home or other health care workers at either the

         14  state or federal level, as long as the process is

         15  fair and efficient.

         16                 Any legislation mandating criminal

         17  background checks or any resolution which urges

         18  legislative action on criminal background checks,

         19  should include the following provisions:

         20                 1.  Health care providers should be

         21  specifically prohibited from requiring applicants to

         22  pay for cost of their own criminal background

         23  checks.  Criminal background checks should not turn

         24  into a back- door tax increase for low- wage

         25  workers.
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          2                 2.  There should be an appeals

          3  process to protect workers who are wrongly accused

          4  of having a criminal background. Collecting and

          5  processing data from all federal, state and local

          6  courts, as well as law- enforcement agencies will be

          7  a mammoth task. Some level of error is inevitable.

          8  There should be an appeals process for workers who

          9  believe they are victims of such errors.

         10                 3.  Background checks should be

         11  processed in a timely manner.  Systems should be

         12  established which could accommodate the increased

         13  demand for checks.  Workers should not be force to

         14  remain on probation for months at a time as they

         15  wait for checks to be completed.

         16                 4.  The definition of crimes should

         17  take into account the severity and relevance of the

         18  crime and the length of time that has passed since

         19  the crime was committed.  Otherwise qualified

         20  applicants should not be excluded from the workforce

         21  as a result of petty crimes or youthful indiscretion

         22  that occurred many years in the past.

         23                 5.  Criminal background checks should

         24  be applied to new applicants only and not currently

         25  employed workers.  Generally, law enforcement
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          2  systems would likely not have the capacity to

          3  complete checks on the entire existing nursing home

          4  workforce. Such a requirement is not likely to be

          5  enforceable.  Resources should not be wasted

          6  screening current employees that have a satisfactory

          7  work history.

          8                 Criminal background checks alone will

          9  not solve the problem of abuse and neglect in

         10  nursing homes.  Ensuring that there are enough

         11  caregivers to meet resident's needs would probably

         12  do more to improve resident or patient care than any

         13  background check legislation.  Wages and benefits

         14  for health care workers must also be improved in

         15  order to reduce high turnover rates, which lead to

         16  problems of abuse.  Criminal background checks, if

         17  done correctly, can be useful protection, but should

         18  not be considered a replacement for addressing

         19  larger and more pressing issues related to staffing,

         20  training and recruitment and retention of quality

         21  health care staff.

         22                 Thank you for this opportunity to

         23  address the Committee.

         24                 (Hearing concluded at 12:10 p.m.)
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